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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of GMR
Pochanpalli Expressways Limited will be held on Wednesday, the 28t day of August 2019
at 11.30 AM at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 25/1, SKIP House, Museum
Road, Bangalore-560025 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2019 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Director in place of Mr. Mohan Rao M (DIN 02506274) who is liable to be retire by
rotation and being eligible to offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolutions as an Ordinary Resolution.

3. To ratify the remuneration of M/s. G. R. & Co., Cost Auditor of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in
force), the Shareholders hereby ratify the remuneration of Rs. 50,000 plus applicable taxes
and out of pocket expenses payable to M/s. G. R. & Co., Cost Accountants, appointed by the
Board of Directors as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of cost records of the
Company for the financial year 2019-20.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution.”

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For GMR Pochanapalli Expressways Limited

Sd/-

Arun Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN: 02281905
Place: New Delhi
Date: 23.07.2019




NOTES:

10.

11.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of the Special Business is annexed hereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE VALID AND
EFFECTIVE MUST BE DELIVERED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT
LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.
A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights, provided that, a member holding more than ten percent of the total paid up
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy
and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Members and/or proxies are requested to bring their copy of the notice to the meeting and
should bring the attendance slips duly filled in at the meeting to avoid any inconvenience.
Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board resolution
authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote at the General Meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote.

In terms of the requirements of the Secretarial Standards -2 on “General Meetings” issued by
the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India and approved & notified by the Central
Government, Route Map for the location of the aforesaid meeting is enclosed.

In terms of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Notice is being sent to all the
Members on the electronic mail address as provided by the Registrar or the Member from
time to time for sending communications unless any Member has requested for a hard copy
of the same. For Members who have not registered their e-mail address, physical copy of the
Notice is being sent by courier. Members are requested to register their E-mail Id with their
Depository Participant/the Company and inform any changes to the same from time to time.
However, Members who prefer physical copy to be delivered may write to the Company at
its Registered Office by providing their DP Id and Client Id /folio number as reference.
Members are requested to notify any change in their registered address along with pin code
and quote their respective ledger folio number/DP Id and Client Id on every communication
with the Company/Depository Participant.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding, maintained
under Section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts and Arrangements
in which Directors are Interested maintained under Section 189 of Companies Act, 2013 will
be available for inspection by the members at the AGM.

All documents referred to in accompanying Notice and Explanatory statement are open for
inspection at the registered office of the Company during the office hours on all working
days except Saturdays/Sundays and holidays between 11.00 A.M. and 1.00 P.M.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
FOR THE ITEMS SET OUT IN THE ACCOMPANYING NOTICE ARE AS UNDER:

Item No 3:

To ratify the remuneration of M/s. G. R. & Co., Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial
year 2019-20

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the reappointment and
remuneration of M/s. G.R. & Co., Cost Accountant to conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the financial year 2019-20 at remuneration as detailed in the resolution.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the
Shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for approval of the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 2019-20.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company & their relatives is in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions at Item No. 3 for approval of the members.

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

Sd/-

Arun Kumar Sharma

Director

Place: New Delhi DIN: 02281905
Date: 23.07.2019




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN: U45200KA2005PLC049327

Registered Office: 25/1, SKIP House, Museum Road, Bangalore - 560 025, Karnataka

E-mail: highways.secretarial@gmrgroup.in
Phone No.: 011 - 42537003; Fax No.: 011 - 42532706

ATTENDANCE
SLIP

DPID

FOLIO NO. / No. of
CLIENT ID shares

Name(s) and address of the member in full:

[/We hereby record my/our presence at the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held on Wednesday, the 28t day of August 2019 at 11.30 AM at the Registered
Office of the Company at, 25/1, Skip House, Museum Road, Bangalore - 560025, Karnataka.

[ 1 wmemBer[ ]  Proxy

Signature of Member / Proxy




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN: U45200KA2005PLC049327
Registered Office: 25/1, SKIP House, Museum Road, Bangalore - 560 025, Karnataka
E-mail: highways.secretarial @gmrgroup.in
Phone No.: 011 - 42537003; Fax No.: 011 - 42532706

FORM NO.MGT-11

PROXY

FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rule, 2014)

CIN U45200KA2005PLC049327

Name of the GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
Company

Registered 25/1, Skip House, Museum Road, Bangalore - 560 025, Karnataka
Address

Name of the
member(s)

Registered
Address

E-Mail ID

DPID and Client
ID /Folio No

I/We, being the member(s) holding
appoint

shares of the above named Company, hereby

Name

Address

E-Mail ID Signature

or failing him

Name

Address

E-mail ID Signature

2

or failing him

Name

3 | Address

E-Mail ID Signature




as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 14th
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, August 28, 2019 at 11.30
AM at 25/1, Skip House, Museum Road, Bangalore - 560025, Karnataka and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Ordinary Business
1. |To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2019 together with the Reports of the Directors’ and the

Auditors’ thereon.
2. |To appoint Director in place of Mr. Mohan Rao M (DIN 02506274) who is liable to
be retire by rotation and being eligible to offers himself for re-appointment.
Special Business

3. |To ratify the remuneration of M/s. G. R. & Co., Cost Auditor of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20.

Signed this day of 2019

Signature of Member

Affix Revenue
Stamp of Re.1

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.




ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE
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GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN: U45200KA2005PLC049327
Registered Office: 25/1, SKIP House, Museum Road, Bangalore - 560 025, Karnataka
E-mail: highways.secretarial @gmrgroup.in
Website: www.gmrgroup.in
Phone No.: 011-47197003; Fax No.: 011-42532706

Director’s Report
Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 14t Annual Report together with the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31,2019.

Financial Performance Summary

The financial highlights of your Company, for the year ended March 31, 2019 are as presented

below: (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31,2018

Gross Income 8,487.35 10,398.97
Expenditure 1,659.18 3,811.15
Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax 6,828.17 6,587.82
Depreciation & amortization expense 9.49 8.01
Profit before Interest 6,818.68 6,579.81
Finance costs 5,937.01 4,924.85
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 881.67 1,654.96
Current Tax 322.98 538.82
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 558.69 1,116.14

During the year ended March 31, 2019, your Company has earned a profit of Rs. 558.69 Lakh as
compared to Rs. 1,116.14 Lakh during the previous year. Reduction in profits during the financial
year 2018-19 is mainly on account of increase in finance cost due to accounting of Modification
Loss on Service Concession Asset.

The State of the Company’s Affairs

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited (the Company) has completed 10t year of commercial
operations. The riding quality is appreciable and within limit specified under the Concession
Agreement. Greenery is well maintained across the project. Two improvement works i.e.,
Construction of ROB and Construction of Vehicular underpass has been taken up by the Company
under Change of Scope as required by National Highways Authority of India. This will enhance the
road user safety.
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Continuous efforts has being put in to enhance the safety of road users by involving various stake
holders. The Company has achieved 100 % Lane Availability during the period and the Operations
of the Company were satisfactory.

Change in the nature of business, if any

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

Dividend

To augment the resources for the Company’s business and as a matter of prudence, the Board of
Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2018-19.

Transfer to Reserves

Amount, if any, which Company proposes to carry to any Reserves: NIL

Changes in Share Capital

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized and Paid up Share Capital of
the Company.

Listing with Stock Exchange

The Non-Convertible Debentures issued by your Company in the month of March 2010 are listed on
NSE and CARE has assigned BBB (SO) with Stable Outlook rating to the debentures issued by the
Company. Currently debentures of Rs. 37,290 Lakh were outstanding at the end of the year.

Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies of its own and
hence, the statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/
Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures, as required to be provided in Form-AQOC 1, is not applicable.

Names of the Companies which have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures
or Associate Companies during the year

Since your Company does not have Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company, this section is
not applicable.

Directors or Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, the following Directors/Key Managerial Personnel were
appointed/ resigned:

Changes in | Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma, Director retired by Rotation in the Annual General
Directors meeting held during the year and being eligible was re-appointed as Director
of the Company.
Changes in| ¢ Mr. Janagani Pothalaiah resigned as a Manager with effect from 28t
KMP’s January, 2019.
e Mr. Adimoolam Paranthaman was appointed as Manager with effect from
23rd February, 2019.
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e Mrs. Grandhi Ragini was re-appointed as whole time director on 23rd
February, 2019 with effect from 01st May, 2019.

Proposals for | Mr. Mohan Rao M. would retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
forthcoming General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-
AGM appointment. The proposal for his re-appointment has also been included in
the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Number of Meetings of the Board

During the year under review, 5 (Five) meetings of the Board of Directors were held-

Date of Director Attendance Details
Meeting
Mr. Arun | Mr. Mohan Mr. K. A| Mr.B.L Gupta | Mrs. Grandhi
Kumar Rao M. Somayajulu Ragini
Sharma
24.04.2018 Present Present Present Present Present
20.07.2018 Present Present Present Present Not Present
25.10.2018 Present Present Present Present Present
16.01.2019 Present Not Present Present Present Not Present
23.02.2019 Present Not Present Present Present Present

The intervening gap between the meetings was within the limit prescribed (i.e. Maximum One
hundred and twenty days between any two consecutive meetings), under the Companies Act,
2013.

Extract of the Annual Return

The extract of the Annual Return, in prescribed Form MGT-9, is annexed as Annexure - I.

Declaration given by Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors have provided declarations that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Deposits

Since Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V (Acceptance of Deposits by
the Companies) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder; the details
required to be given in terms of Rule 8 (5)(v) & (vi) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable.
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Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

In accordance with the provisions as prescribed under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 regarding the disclosure of names of the top ten employees in terms of
remuneration drawn and the name of every employees who- was in receipt of remuneration not
less than one crore and two lakh rupees, if employed throughout the year, or remuneration not
less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month, if employed for any part of that year, and
other details are provided under Annexure-II.

Particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings & Outgo

The details of Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings or
outgo are given in Annexure III.

Auditors and Auditors’ Report

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants, (Regn.No. 101720W), Chartered Accountants,
were appointed as Statutory Auditors in the AGM of the company held on 27t August, 2018 for a
period of 5 years commencing from F.Y. 2018-19.

ualification / Reservation/ Adverse Remark or Disclaimer in the Auditors’ Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the report of the Statutory
Auditors’ which require any clarification/explanation.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had
appointed M/s. VAPN & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice, New Delhi to conduct the
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2018-19. The Secretarial Audit Report, in the Form MR-3,
for the Financial Year 2018-19, is annexed as Annexure IV.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the report of the Secretarial
Auditor which require any clarification/explanation.

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had appointed M/s.
VAPN & Associates, Company Secretaries, New Delhi, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the Financial Year 2019-20.

Cost Auditors

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had appointed M/s
G.R. & Co., Cost Accountant as the Cost Auditor for the financial year 2018-19 for auditing the cost
records of the Company. M/s G.R. & Co. has submitted the Cost Audit Report for financial year
2018-19 which is annexed as Annexure V. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarks in the said Cost Audit Report.
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The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had appointed M/s
G.R. & Co. for the financial year 2019-20 for auditing the cost records of the Company maintained
pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended.

The item for obtaining requisite approval of the shareholders for the fees payable to the Cost
Auditors for conducting the audit for the financial year 2019-20 has been included in the notice of

Annual General Meeting.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186

The Company is engaged in the business of providing Infrastructural facilities and hence, it is
exempted from the provisions of Section 186, except sub-section (1), of the Companies Act, 2013
under sub-section (11) of the said section w.r.t. loans made, guarantee given and security provided
by it.

Particulars of Contracts or arrangements with related parties

The Company presents a detailed landscape of all related party transactions (RPT) before the
Audit Committee, specifying the nature, value, and terms and conditions of the transactions. All the
transactions with related parties were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
Transactions with related parties are conducted in a transparent manner keeping the interest of
the Company and Stakeholders at utmost priority. The Company has framed a Policy on Related
Party Transaction for the purpose of identification and monitoring of such transactions.

During the period under review, all the transactions entered with related parties were in
accordance with the RPT Policy of the Company and in ordinary course of business and are
generally at arm’s length basis in their context does not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder. The particulars required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in prescribed Form
AOC- 2, is enclosed herewith as Annexure-VI.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report.

Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors,
based on their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation/
certifications obtained from the operating management, confirm in respect of the audited financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
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(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
and loss of the company for that period;

(9 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had had laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

Statement indicating Development and Implementation of risk management policy for the

company including identification of elements of risk, in any, which in the board may
threaten the existence of the company.

The Company has a detailed Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Audit Committee and
Board. The risk analysis is carried out with the help of Enterprises Risk Management team of the
Group in line with the Risk Management Policy of the Company. The Company’s Risk Management
framework is in line with the current best practices and effectively addresses the emerging
challenges in a dynamic business environment which incorporate therein the specific elements of
risk associated with the business of the Company. In today’s challenging and competitive
environment strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the
Company are imperative.

As a matter of Policy, risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year under review, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR
Committee) of the Board duly complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rules framed thereunder.

During the year, there was no change in the constitution of Audit Committee

The CSR Committee met two times during the year, the details of which are given below:

Date of Committee Member’s Attendance Details
Meeting
Mr. Arun Kumar Mr. Mohan Rao M. Mr. K. A. Somayajulu
Sharma (Chairman)
24.04.2018 Present Present Present
20.07.2018 Present Present Present
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Details about the Policy developed & implemented

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, formulated and recommended by the CSR Committee,
as approved by the Board is annexed as Annexure VII. The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
is also available on the website of the Company at www.gmrgroup.in.

Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives

The GMR Group’s social responsibility initiatives are implemented through GMR Varalakshmi
Foundation (GMRVF), the CSR arm of the GMR Group. The activities cover awareness about
Preventive Health Care & Sanitation and Promoting Education including Vocational Skills.

During the year under review, the Company spent Rs. 34.38 lakhs on CSR activities through GMR
Varalakshmi Foundation and Rs. 7 lakhs directly, i.e. 2% of the average net profits of the Company
made during the 3 immediately preceding financial years in terms of Section 135(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder.

The requisite disclosures as prescribed under the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rules made there under is annexed as Annexure VIII.

Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Audit Committee of the Board duly complied the requirements
of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder and all
recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

During the year, there was no change in the constitution of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee met four (4) times during the year, the details of which are given below:

Date of Director Attendance Details
Meeting
Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma | Mr. K. A. Somayajulu Mr. B. L Gupta
24.04.2018 Present Present Present
20.07.2018 Present Present Present
25.10.2018 Present Present Present
16.01.2019 Present Present Present

All recommendations made by the Audit Committee have been duly adopted/approved by the
Board.

Establishment of Vigil Mechanism

In terms of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, your Company has formulated and established a vigil mechanism for its
directors and employees to report genuine concerns. Company’s vigil mechanism is in the form of
a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’.
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The Company believes in conducting the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner
by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour.

This policy provides a platform to the directors and employees of the Company to report concerns
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct
or ethics policy. It also provides the mechanism for stakeholders, including individual employees
and their representative bodies, to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical
practices.

Company’s vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguard against the victimization of employees
and directors who wish to avail the vigil mechanism to deal with the instance of fraud,
mismanagement, unethical behaviour, if any. It is ensured that no unfair treatment is meted out to
a Whistle Blower by virtue of his/her having reported a Protected Disclosure under this Policy.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee duly complied with
the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder.

During the year under review, there was no change in the constitution of NRCM Committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met Two (2) times,
the details of which are given below:

Date of Committee Member’s Attendance Details
Meeting
Mr. Arun Kumar | Mr. Mohan Rao Mr. K. A. Mr. B. L Gupta
Sharma M. Somayajulu
20.07.2018 Present Present Present Present
23.02.2018 Present Not Present Present Present

Company’s Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration

The Company has formulated a Policy which, inter-alia, enumerates appointment and
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees including criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters as
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is annexed as Annexure IX available on the Company’s
website at www.gmrgroup.in.

Statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the
Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and Individual Directors

The Companies Act, 2013 has mandated the need to ensure effectiveness of the Board governance
and requires a statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made
by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors.

GPEL-Directors’ Report —2018-19



The mechanism to evaluate the performance of Board, its committee and Directors, as per the
statutory requirement, was considered and adopted by the Board.

In order to do the evaluation, structured questionnaires / performance evaluations forms were
considered by the Board for evaluating itself/ Committees and individual Directors, which were
broadly based on certain specific parameters. During the year under review, the Board and
Nomination and Remuneration committee has carried out evaluation of individual Directors and
performance of their Committees.

Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future

There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts/ Tribunals which
would impact the going concern status and future operations of the Company.

Details in respect of adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial
Statements

The Company monitors and ensures efficient communication between various sites and corporate
office; efficiently manages the information system and reviews the IT systems; ensures accurate &
timely recording of transactions; stringently checks the compliance with prevalent statutes,
management policies & procedures in addition to securing adherence to applicable accounting
standards and policies.

The internal control system of the Company provides for adherence to approved procedures,
policies, guidelines and authorization. In order to ensure that all checks and balances are in place
and all the internal control systems and procedures are in order, regular and exhaustive internal
audit is conducted by M/s. R Subramanium & Co., Chartered Accountants for the Financial year
2018-19. Internal Audit Reports prepared M/s. M. Bhaskara Rao & Co. were reviewed by the Audit
Committee on quarterly basis which were then placed before the Board.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143
other than those which are reportable to the Central Government

During the period under review, no such fraud was reported by the Statutory Auditors.

Disclosure in terms of the Listing Agreement for Debt Securities

Pursuant to Regulation 53(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for the issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD’s)
listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE), the following disclosures are being made:

S. In the accounts of an issuer | Disclosures of amounts at the year end and the
No. | whoisa- maximum amount of loans/ advances/ investments
Outstanding during the year 2018-19:

1. Subsidiary Loan given and outstanding as at 31.03.2019, Rs. 6,080
Lakh
GMR Highways Limited -
(Holding Company)

Maximum Amount outstanding during the year, Rs.
6,080 Lakh
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2. Loan given and outstanding as at 31.03.2019, Nil
GMR Enterprises Limited-
(Holding Company) Maximum Amount outstanding during the year, Rs.
1,000 Lakh
3. Dhruvi Securities Pvt. Ltd- Loan given and outstanding as at 31.03.2019, Rs. 2,000
(Fellow subsidiary Company) | Lakh
Maximum Amount outstanding during the year, Rs.
9,500 Lakh
4, GMR Tambaram Tindivanam | Loan given and outstanding as at 31.03.2019, Rs. 741

Expressways Limited -
(Fellow subsidiary Company)

Lakh

Maximum Amount outstanding during the year, Rs. 741
Lakh

5. GMR Tuni Anakapalli
Expressways Limited -
(Fellow subsidiary Company)

Loan given and outstanding as at 31.03.2019, Rs. 494
Lakh

Maximum Amount outstanding during the year, Rs. 494
Lakh

6. Kakinada SEZ Limited -
(Fellow subsidiary Company)

Loan given and outstanding as at 31.03.2019, Rs. 7,500
Lakh

Maximum Amount outstanding during the year, Rs.
7,500 Lakh

7. GMR SEZ and Port Holdings
Private Limited - (Fellow

Loan given and outstanding as at 31.03.2019, Rs.
1,967.07 Lakh

subsidiary Company) Maximum Amount outstanding during the year, Rs.
1,967.07 Lakh
8. GMR Infrastructure Limited- | Loan given and outstanding as at 31.03.2019, Rs. 7,182
(Holding Company) Lakh

Maximum Amount outstanding during the year, Rs.
7,182 Lakh

Details of Debenture Trustee:

Name of the Debenture Trustee

M/s Axis Trustee Services Limited

Address

The Debenture Trustee - Axis Trustee Services
Limited

The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW, 29, Senapati Bapat
Marg, Dadar West, Mumbai- 400028 Telephone
No-022-62260054/62260050

Contact Person-

Mr. Prateek Shingwekar - Senior Manager
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Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

As required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, a statement showing the number of complaints filed during the financial year
and the number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year is shown as under:

Category No. of complaints No. of complaints No of complaints
pending at the filed during the FY pending as on end of
beginning of FY FY

Sexual Harassment Nil Nil Nil
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Annexure -1

Form No. MGT -9

(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
Extract of Annual Return as on the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2019

L. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U45200KA2005PLC049327

Registration Date

18-10-2005

Name of the Company

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Company Limited by Shares

Address of the Registered office and
contact details

25/1, SKIP House, First Floor Museum Road,
Bangalore-560025, Karnataka

Phone No.: 011-47197003;
Fax No.: 011-42532706

Email: highways.secretarial@gmrgroup.in

Whether Listed Company

Yes, Debentures issued by the company are
listed on NSE

Name, Address and Contact Details of
Registrar and transfer Agent, if any

Integrated Registry Management Services
Private Limited, Bangalore 30, Ramana
Residency, 4th Cross, Sampaigne Road,
Malleswaram, Bangalore - 560003

Contact-011-47197003;

Fax No.: 011-42532706
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall

be stated:-

SI. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of | % to total

No. the turnover
Product/ of the
service company

1. To carry on the business, either individually or as joint 4210 100%

venture with any other entity, whether in India or outside
India, of constructing, improving, developing, strengthening,
widening, operating, maintaining of roads, culverts, highways,
expressways including traffic management system, bridge(s),
intra-urban and or peri-urban roads like rings roads and
urban by-passes, fly-overs, bus and truck terminals, sub-
ways, convention centres, restaurants, motels, shopping
malls, fuel yards, fuel depots, fuel stations, golf courses,
amusement parks, or other activities being an integral part of
the highway project(s), on any land of the Company or upon
any other lands or property and to pull down, alter, rebuild,
enlarge, alter and improve existing structures, buildings or
works thereon to convert and appropriate any such land for
the purpose of roads, streets, gardens and other
conveniences and to deal with and improve the property and
to charge, collect, appropriate and deploy fees, toll charges,
and levies from users of the infrastructure facilities; to carry
on the business as manufacturers, producers, importers,
exporters, dealers, either retail or wholesale, agents,
representatives, suppliers of all building materials such as
cement, steel, ceramics, timber, wood, centering materials,
plastics, bricks, potteries, electrical equipment and fittings,
stone crushers, machines, and other inputs required for the
purpose of aforesaid business.
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sr. | Name and address of CIN/GLN Holding/ % of | Applicable
No the company Subsidiary | Shares section
/Associate held
1. | GMR Highways |U45203MH2006PLC287171 Holding 74.48% | Sec 2(46)
Limited
2. GMR  Infrastructure [L45203MH1996PLC281138 Holding 99.82% | Sec 2(46)
Limited (Through
one or more
of its
subsidiary
companies)

*GMR Infrastructure Limited holds 25.14% of the Total Share Capital directly and the balance indirectly
through one or more Subsidiary Companies.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year

No. of Shares held at the

the year

end of

%
Change
during

the year

Demat Physic

al

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physic
al

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Promoters

(1) Indian

Individual/ - 4
HUF

0.00

0.00

Central Government - -

State Government - -

Bodies Corporate 137,999,996 -

137,999,996

100

137,999,996 4

138,00

0,000

100

Banks / FI - -

Any other
(Trust)

Sub Total (A)(1) 137,999,996

138,000,000

100

137,999,996

138,00

0,000

100

(2) Foreign

NRI - -

Others - Individual - -

Bodies Corporate - -

Banks / FI - -

Any other - -

Sub Total (A) (2) 0 0

0

0 0

Total shareholding
of Promoter (A) =

A) M+ (@)

137,999,996

138,000,000

100

137,999,996

138,000,000

100 -
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B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutional

Mutual Fund

Banks /FI

Central Govt.

State Govt.

Venture Capital Fund

Insurance Co.

Flls

Foreign Venture
Capital Fund

Others

Sub Total (B) (1)

2. Non- Institutional

a. Bodies Corporate

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b. Individual

i. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
uptoRs. 1 lakh

ii. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
uptoRs. 1 lakh

C. Others

Sub Total (B) (2)

Total shareholding
of Promoter (B) =

(B) (1) +(B) (2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

GRAND TOTAL
(A+B+(C)

137,999,996

138,000,000

100

137,999,996

4 138,000,000| 100
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the year
No. of the year
No. % of | % of | No. % of | % of | %
of Shares total Shares of Shares total | Shares change
Share | Pledged / Share | Pledged/ | in
s of | encumber s of | encumber | shareho
the ed to total the ed to total | lding
Co. shares Co. shares during
theyear
1. GMR Infrastructure 13,80,000 1.00 0.00 13,80,000 1.00 0.00 0.00
Limited
2. GMR Energy Limited 6,90,000 0.50 0.00 6,90,000 0.50 0.00 0.00
3. GMR Highways Limited 13,59,29,996 | 98.50 0.00 13,59,29,996 | 98.50 0.00 0.00
4. Mr. B.V.N. Rao 1 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. Mr. Govindarajulu T 1 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
6. Mr. S. K. Kulkarni 1 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
7. Mr. Amit Kumar 1 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
8. GMR Business Process 0 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
and Services Pvt. Ltd.
9. Dhruvi Securities Pvt. Ltd. 0 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
10. | GMR Aerostructure 0 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
Services Limited
11. | GMR Corporate Affairs 0 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
Pvt. Ltd.
iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding: -
S.N | Name of the | Shareholding at Date Reason Increase/Decreas Cumulative
o. shareholder the beginning ein shareholding
of the year Shareholding during the year
No. of | % of total No. % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of of shares of | shares shares of
the sha the the
Company res Company Company
1 GMR Highways Ltd. 1 0 01.10.2018 | Transfer (D 0 - -
jointly with  Mr.
Venkatanageswarar
ao Boda
2 GMR Highways Ltd. 1 0 01.10.2018 | Transfer (D 0 - -
jointly with  Mr.
Govindarajulu Tata
3 GMR Highways Ltd. 1 0 01.10.2018 | Transfer (D 0 - -
jointly with Mr. Amit
Kumar
4 GMR Highways Ltd. 1 0 01.10.2018 | Transfer (D 0 - -
jointly with  Mr.
Sundhindra Rao
Krishnaji Kulkarni
5 GMR Business - - 01.10.2018 | Transfer 1 0 1 0
Process and Services
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Pvt. Ltd.

Dhruvi Securities - 01.10.2018 Transfer 0 1 0
Pvt. Ltd.

GMR Aerostructure - 01.10.2018 Transfer 0 1 0
Services Limited

GMR Corporate - 01.10.2018 | Transfer 0 1 0

Affairs Pvt. Ltd.

iv)_Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and

Holders of GDRs and ADRs:
Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative  Shareholding
No beginning of the year during the year
For Each of the Top 10 | No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shareholders shares shares of shares shares of
the the
Company Company
1. | At the beginning of the
year.
2. | Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Shareholding
during the NOT APPLICABLE
Year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus
/ sweat eaquitv etc):
3. | Atthe End of the year (or on
the date of separation, if
separated during the year)
v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
S.No. | Name Shareholding at the Date Reason | Increase/Decrease in Cumulative
of the beginning Shareholding shareholding
KMP of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of shares shares of
the the the
Company Company Company
1 Mr. Amit 1 0 01.10.2018 | Transfer (D 0 - -
Kumar
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Total

Deposits Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year

i.  Principal Amount

ii. Int. due but not paid

iii. Interest accrued but not
due

4,085,729,290

176,865,375

- 4,085,729,290

- 176,865,375

Total (i+ii+iii)

4,262,594,665

- 4,262,594,665

Change in Indebtedness
during the Financial Year
Addition

Reduction

382,553,631

382,553,631

Net Change

(382,553,631)

(382,553,631)

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year

i. Principal Amount

ii. Int. due but not paid

iii. Interest accrued but not
due

3,719,102,438

160,938,596

- 3,719,102,438

- 160,938,596

Total (i+ii+iii)

3,880,041,034

- 3,880,041,034
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:-

(InRs.)

Sr.
no.

Particulars of
Remuneration

NAME OF DIRECTOR/KMP

Total Amount
(Rs.)

Particulars

Ms.

Grandhi

Ragini,

Whole

Time

Director

Mr.
Pothalaiah,
Manager
(01.04.2018
28.01.2019)

Janagani

Mr. A.
Paranthaman
Manager

to | (23.02.2019 to
31.03.2019)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act,1961

6,398,683

1,881,229

199,158

8,479,070

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

56,800

56,800

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission - as % of profit
- other, specify

Other, please specify

Total (A)

6,455,483

1,881,229

199,158

8,535,870
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Independent Director

Mr. K. A. Somayajulu

Mr. B. L. Gupta Total
Amount

(inRs.)

Independent Directors

e Fee for attending board

committee meetings
e Commission
e Others, please specify

182,900

171,100 354,000

Total (1)

182,900

171,100 354,000

Other
Directors

Non-Executive

e Fee for attending board
committee meetings

e Commission
® Others, please specify

Total (2)

U1

Total (B)=(1+2)

182,900

171,100 354,000

Total Managerial
Remuneration

[(A) +(B)]

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

NA

NA NA
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B. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

(In Rupees)
Sr. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
No. Remuneration
Mr. Amit Kumar, Mr. Paramjeet | Total Amount
CFO Singh, CS (in Rs.)
1. | Gross salary
(@) Salary as per 3,974,523 - 3,974,523
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the )
Income-tax Act, 1961 i ) )
(b) Value of perquisites u/s -
17(2) Income-tax Act,1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary )
under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961 -
2. Stock Option - - -
Sweat Equity - -
4, Commission - as % of - - -
profit
5. | Other, please specify - - - -
Total 3,974,523 - 3,974,523
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of | Brief Details of | Authority | Appeal
the Description | penalty / | (RD/NCLT | made, if
Companies punishment/ | /Court) any (give
Act Compounding details)
fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding
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Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

Annexure 11

Name Designation Gross Nature of [Qualification Experienc Date of Age Last
Remuneration [Employmen e (Yrs.) | Commencement |(Yrs., Employment
(Rs.) t (Whether of Employment | )
contractual
or
otherwise)
Ms. G Ragini Whole- 6,398,683 [Permanent |Professional | 14 01.05.2016 42 | -
time
Director
Mr. O President 1,562,615 [Permanent | CA & CS 37 01.05.2014 62 | Suryavamshi
Bangaru Raju Spinning Mills
Ltd.
Mr. Amit CFO 3,974,523 Permanent | CA 16 22.01.2015 39 | GMR
Kumar Hyderabad
Vijayawada
Expressways
Pvt. Ltd.
Barrenkala Project 2,137,584 |Permanent | Dip-Engg 24 11.01.2006 46 | B Seeniah &
Sekhar Manager Co
Mr. Janagani Manager 1,881,230 [Permanent | Dip-Engg 24 23.12.2015 49 | GMR Group
Pothalaiah
Paranthaman | Manager - 1,518,478 [Permanent | B.Tech 31 02.11.1999 47 | Jaybharath
Adimoolam 0&M Builders
Praveen Ch Manager - 1,073,345 Permanent | PGDCA 18 07.05.2008 39 | BHEL
Toll &
HTMS
Lakshman Junior 1,006,354 [Permanent | Dip-Engg 19 06.09.2010 39 | Gyatri Projects
Oduri Manager - Limited
0&M
Bala Krishna | Associate 988,309 |Permanent | Dip-Engg 15 20.09.2010 36 | M/s Essar
Manager - Constructions
0&M Limted
Ankur Varma | Junior 710,528 [Permanent | PGD(Mgmt) | 23 25.07.2018 46 | Petron  Civil
Manager - Engineering
Corporate Limited
Affairs

Note: None of the employee mentioned above except Mr. Amit Kumar holds any share of the Company, nor is a relative of any
Director of the Company. Mr. Amit Kumar held 1 share jointly with GMR Highways Limited till 1.10.2018

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the

employees of the company for the financial year;

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of Directors is
furnished hereunder:

Name of the Director (Mr./Mrs.)

Ratio of Director’s remuneration to the
median remuneration of the employees of
the Company for the financial year

Grandhi Ragini, Whole Time Director

7.96
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Arun Kumar Sharma, Director NA
Mohan Rao Murthy, Director NA
K A Somayajulu, Independent Director* 0.23
Bajrang Lal Gupta, Independent Director* 0.21

* Sitting fees was paid to the Independent Directors.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Name of the Director/KMP (Mr./Mrs.) Percentage increase/ (decrease) in
remuneration in the financial year

Grandhi Ragini, Whole Time Director 18.49

Arun Kumar Sharma, Director NA

Mohan Rao Murthy, Director NA

K A Somayajulu, Independent Director* 35.48

Bajrang Lal Gupta, Independent Director* 14.07

Paranthaman Adimoolam, Manager#* NA

Amit Kumar, Chief Financial Officer (2.35)

Paramjeet Singh, Company Secretary NA

* Sitting fees was paid to the Independent Directors.
# Appointed as Manager w.e.f. 23.02.2019

1. The percentage increase/(decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial

year: (33.19%)

2. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31.03.2019: 20

3. Average percentile/percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees other than

the managerial personnel in the last financial year, its comparison with the percentile increase
in the managerial remuneration, justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentile/percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year was 5.95%. Remuneration paid to the Whole
Time Director was increased by 18.49%. The % increase in remuneration of the Whole Time
Director is on account of the revised limits of remuneration payable in terms of Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the ‘Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key
managerial Personnel and other employees’ adopted by the Company
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Annexure 111

Particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings & Outgo

(A) Conservation of energy-
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy -

The Company has implemented various power conservation measures at project site and ensures
that these measures function effectively and continuously. These measures include installation of
Automatic power factor controller, Timers and Servo Stabilizers.

Additional charges were levied by the electricity board when the power factor falls below 0.90.
The Automatic power factor controller helps to maintain the power factor at 0.95 and above.
Further, there were power fluctuations at many of the connections and were causing damages to
the lighting fixtures and equipment. The servo stabilizers were installed to stabilize the power and
save the loss due to damage of fixtures and equipment. Due to the automatic timers, the glowing
duration of the highway lights are being optimized.

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy -

For Utilizing alternate sources of energy - solar lights have been installed at various locations on
the Expressway. Solar LED lights were installed at selected locations in the project such as, truck
lay byes and at junctions. The solar lights fixed with timers are functioning effectively and
considerably, adding to the power conservation and savings.

(iii) The Capital Investment on energy conservation Equipments - NIL

(B) Technology absorption-

Company has not adopted any new method for technology absorption during the year.
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange
outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows - NIL
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VAPN & ASSOCIATES.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315" MARCH, 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN: U45200KA2005PLC049327

25/1, SKIP House, Museum Road Bangalore
Bangalore, Karnataka -560025, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS
LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”) for the period ended on 31 March, 2019.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 315 March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, Forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED for the financial year
ended on 315 March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder and applicable
. provisions of the Companies Act, 1956;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

3. The Depository Acts, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye Laws framed thereunder;

office: 506,5th Floor,B-8, GD ITL Twin Tower,Netaji Subhash Place,Pitampura,Delhi-110034

Contact us on +911149058932, +91 9810011532 e-mail : info@vapn.in : website: www.vapn.in




VAPN & ASSOCIATES.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable)

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibitions of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; Not Applicable

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; Not Applicable

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Company and dealing with
clients; Not Applicable

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and Not Applicable

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; Not Applicable

6. Other Applicable Acts;

(a) Maternity Benefits Act, 1961;

(b) Payment of Wages Act, 1936, and rules made thereunder;

(¢) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and rules made thereunder;

(d) Employees” State Insurance Act, 1948, and rules made thereunder;

(¢) The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and rules
made thereunder;

(f) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, and rules made thereunder;

(g) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, and rules made thereunder;

(h) The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970; and

(i) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: -

(i) The Secretarial Standards with regards to meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General
Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and;
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(ii) The Listing Agreement entered by the Company with NSE Limited and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(upto the extent it is applicable to
the Debt listed Companies).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above up to the extent as are
applicable to it.

We further report that:

» The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with required numbers of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

» Proper notices were given to all the directors of the schedule Board/ Committee and
Shareholders Meetings, with agenda along with the detailed notes on agenda, and were
circulated at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
the further information and clarifications, wherever necessary, on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

» As per minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decision of
the board was unanimous and no dissenting members’ views have been recorded.

We further to report that the based on review of Compliance Mechanism established by the
Company and on the basis of Compliance Certificate(s) issued by the respective Department
heads, Chief Executive officer and the Company Secretary, that were duly placed before and
taken on the record by the Board of Directors in their meeting(s), we are of the opinion that there
are adequate systems and processes within the company that commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure the compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines..

For VAPN & Associates
Company Secretaries

Fi W P2015DE045500

CS Prabhakar Kumar
Partner
CP No.: 10630

Place: New Delhi
Date: '5|°'4‘7—°}‘T
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ANNEXURE

To,

The Members,

GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN: U45200KA2005PLC049327

25/1, SKIP House, Museum Road Bangalore
Bangalore, Karnataka -560025 India

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
Management’s Responsibility:

I. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain the secretarial
records, and to devise proper systems, to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate
effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
- procedures followed by the Company with respects to Secretarial Compliances.

3. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
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6. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
Disclaimer

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
 the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For VAPN & Associates
Company Secretaries

Regi tratWPZOISDEMSSOO

CS bhakar Kumar
Partner
CP No.: 10630

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15|0;H:20‘q
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GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN: U45200KA2005PLC049327

COST AUDIT REPORT 2018-19




G.R & Co. No. 624, 1* Floor,

COST ACCOUNTANT 24% Cross, 15t Main,
BSK 1l Stage,
Bangalore -560 070

FORM CRA-3
FORM OF COST AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to rule 6(4) of the companies (cost account and audit) rules, 2014)]

To,
The Board of Directors of GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
25/1, SKIP House,
Museum Road,
Bangalore - 560 025

I, Geetha R, having been appointed as a cost auditor under section 148(3) of companies act 2013 (18 of
2013) of GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited having its registered office at # 25/1, SKIP House,
Museum Road, Bangalore - 560 025 (hereinafter referred to as company), have audited the cost records
maintained under section 148 of the said act, in compliance with the cost audit standards, in respect of
Construction and Infrastructure industry for the year 2018-19 maintained by the company report, in
addition to my observation suggestions in Para 2.

i.  I'have obtained all the information and explanation, which to the best of my knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of audit.

ii. Inmy opinion, proper cost records, as per the rule 5 of the companies (cost records and audit) Rules
2014 have been maintained by the company in respect service under reference.

iii.  Inmy opinion, proper returns adequate for the purpose of the cost audit have been received from the.
branches not visited by me.

iv.  Inmy opinion and to the best of my information, the said books and records give the information
required by the companies Act, 2013, in the manner so required.

v.  Inmy opinion, company have adequate system of internal audit of cost records which to my opinion is
commensurate to its nature and size of its business.

Telefax: +91 80 26714987 / 2671 5046, Email: cma.geethar@gmail.com
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vi.  Inmy opinion, information, statements annexure to this cost audit report gives a true and fair view of
the cost of rendering of service,cost of sale, margin and other information relating to the service under

reference.

Detailed unit-wise service-wise cost statements and schedules thereto in respect of the service under
reference of the company duly audited and certified by me are keptin the company.

M.No. 30294 \

R.No. 101504

DATE: 23-0%: (9 NAME OF COST ACCOUNTANT: GEETHA.R
PLACE: BANGALORE MEMBERSHIP NUMBER :30294

Telefax: +91 80 2671 4987 / 2671 5046, Email: cma.geethar@gmail.com
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G.R & Co. :
COST ACCOUNTANT No. 624, 1% Floor,

4Cross, 15thMain,
BSK Il Stage,
Bangalore -560 070

Cost Accounting Policy:

1.

10.

The Company has maintained the required cost accounting records namely material consumption
register, labour hours utilization register, sub-contractors details register, stock register, overhead
consumption register and overhead analysis register

The company has identified the cost centers as labour utilization register, utilities register, overhead
register, stock register. The cost drivers would be the actual cost incurred by the company with
respect to maintenance of infrastructure and roads by the company.

The company has involved in infrastructure activity, most of the activities are sub contracted, hence
the material cost of raw material include the amount charges by the sub-contractor with respect to
the same. The employee cost includes salaries, wages, contribution to provident and other funds,
employee welfare and other benefits.

The indirect expenses incurred has to be allocated to the projects by the company during 2018-19.
The overheads has been allocated based on the turnover of the project.

Depreciation has been calculated based on the useful life of the asset, hence the company has
accounted the depreciation of the machinery as direct cost and other office asset has been termed
as indirect cost and allocated based on the existing absorption rate.

The company does not have any by products or joint products.

The inventory details are not applicable for the company.

The related party transactions have been valued at arm’s length. The transactions pertain to service
received or rendered by the related parties, hence the same has been valued at arm’s length.

The company has not incurred any abnormal costs during the year 2018-19.The other non-cost item
incurred by the company has been considered as reconciliation item as the same is not incurred for
the project undertaken by the company.

During the year, the cost accounting records have been maintained with respect to the generally
accepted cost accounting principles.

Telefax: +91 80 2671 4987 / 2671 5046, Email: cma.geethar@gmail.com
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11. The Company has not changed any cost accounting policy during the reporting period 2018-19

12. During the year, the budgetary control system had been adequate..

30294 \

* | R No. 101504 ) *
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FORM NO. AOC -2

Annexure VI

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis: NIL
SL. No. [Name(s) of the related party &GMR Highways Limited
nature of relationship

(a) |Nature oflPeriodic Maintenance Agreement
contracts/arrangements/transact
ions

(b) Duration of the contracts /5 years
arrangements/ transactions

(© Salient terms of the contracts or|Periodic Maintenance Agreement was executed with effect from April
arrangements or transaction/01, 2015 at a base rate of Rs. 102.84 crore with due escalation @5%
including the value, if any for which accounting provision of Rs. 25 crore per year to be made in

accounts.

(d) Justification for entering intolAs the work was to be carried out after a period of 5 years, the other
such contracts or arrangementsicontractors were not willing to give a firm quote at the time of Board
or transactions’ approval. Accordingly, the Company entered into an agreement with

GMR Highways Limited for carrying out this work.

(e)  |Date of approval by the Board 31.07.2015

(f) IAmount paid as advances, if any [Rs 150,885,420/

(g) |Date on which the special16.09.2015
resolution was passed in general
meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis.
Name(s) of the related | GMR  Highways Raxa Security Services |GMR Infrastructure Limited
party & nature of | Limited Private Limited
relationship
Nature of | Operation & Security Service [Common Manpower Sharing
contracts/arrangements/t | Maintenance- Charges Expense
ransactions Routine
Maintenance &
repairs
Duration of the contracts / | Upto end of the [Ratified from |Continuing
arrangements/transaction | concession period [19.01.2017 up to
30.06.2017 and
renewal of the
agreement w.e.f.
01.07.2017 till the end
of concession period.
Salient terms of the | As per agreement |As per agreement Raxa |GIL requested to Deloitte to
contracts or arrangements | dated 01.02.2010, |Security Services
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or transactions including | GMR  Highways [Limited shall inter alia [review the current business

the Value, ifany Limited will jmobilize suitable and scenario and to Suggest Changes_
perform all sufficient —manpower |pajpitte had submitted the
routine road fincluding the ised t to be effective
maintenance management staff revisec repor ]
activities  along [required for fulfilling from 2015-16. This has been
the project [the obligation of the approved by GIL. The board
highway including [Company under the [approved the allocation of
implementing Agreement at a [corporate common costs to the
apprgpriate consideration of Rs. |company by GIL. As the amount
Traffic 5,09,729/- per month of the proposed transaction of Rs.
Management and plus GST ‘apart from oo 1 o choll be within the
Lane Closure |ratification ~ of  Rs. ) o
scheme during 847,676 /- (approx.) prescribed limit, the shareholder
routing & periodic |(exclusive of taxes) approval is not required
maintenance.

Date(s) of approval by the | 11.05.2009 15.07.2017 ACM/Board 31.07.2015

Board, if any

Amount paid as advances, | NIL NIL NIL

if any

Sd/- Sd/-
Mohan Rao M Arun Kumar Sharma
Date: 23.07.2019 Director Director

Place: New Delhi

DIN: 02506274

DIN: 02281905
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Annexure VII

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited (the Company) forming part of GMR Group has adopted the
CSR Policy of GMR Group. GMR Group (the Group) recognizes that its business activities have wide
impact on the societies in which it operates and therefore an effective practice is required giving
due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders including shareholders, customers,
employees, suppliers, business partners, local communities and other organizations.

The Company is driven by Group’s vision to make a difference, specifically to society by
contributing to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of life of the
local communities. Towards this vision, the Group including the Company, through GMR
Varalakshmi Foundation (GMRVF), partners with the communities around the businesses to drive
various initiatives in the areas of education, health, hygiene, sanitation, empowerment, livelihood
and community development.

Projects / Activities / Programmes proposed to be undertaken under CSR Policy

As recommended by the CSR Committee of the Board and as per the approval of the Board of
directors at their meeting held on 23rd July, 2014, the Company contributes or carries out its CSR
activities or contribute funds to GMRVF towards activities / programmes broadly within the ambit
given below, in India. (Preference will be given to Areas in and around Operation and
Maintenance where the project is located):

i) Education:

e Support for promotion of education of all kinds (school education, technical, higher,
vocational and adult education), to all ages and in various forms, with a focus on
vulnerable and under-privileged;

e Education for girl child and the underprivileged by providing appropriate
infrastructure and groom them as future citizens and contributing members of
society;

ii) Health, Hygiene and Sanitation:

e Ambulance services, mobile medical units, health awareness programmes and
camps, medical check-ups, HIV/AIDS awareness initiatives, health care facilities
and services, sanitation facilities;

e Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promotion of preventive health care
and sanitation, and making available safe drinking water;

e Reducing child mortality and improving maternal health;

iii) Empowerment & Livelihoods:

e Employment enhancing vocational skills training, marketing support and other
initiatives for youth, women, elderly, rural population and the differently abled,
and livelihood enhancement projects;

e promoting gender equality, empowering women, working for senior citizens and
measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward
groups;

e Assist in skill development by providing direction and technical expertise for
empowerment;
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iv) Community Development:
o Encouraging youth and children to form clubs and participate in community
development activities such as like cleanliness drives, plantation drives etc;

v) Environmental sustainability:
e ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and
maintaining quality of soil, air and water;

vi) Heritage and Culture:
e protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings
and sites of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries;
promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

vii) measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

viii) training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and
Olympic sports;

ix) contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the
Central Government or the State Governments for socio-economic development and relief,
and funds for the welfare of the Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes, other backward
classes, minorities and women,;

x) contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic
institutions which are approved by the Central Government;

xi) rural development projects;

xii) such other activities included in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be
identified by CSR Committee from time to time, which are not expressly prohibited.

Expenditure that shall not be treated as CSR activity by the Company

- Activities undertaken in pursuance of the normal course of business;

- activities undertaken outside India;

- activities that benefit exclusively the employees of the company or their family members;

-One-off events such as marathons/ awards/ charitable contribution/ advertisement/
sponsorships of TV programmes etc.

- Expenses incurred by companies for the fulfillment of any Act/ Statute of regulations (such as
Labour Laws, Land Acquisition Act etc.)

Further, the surplus arising out of the CSR activity shall not form part of business profits of the
Company.
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Annexure VIII

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or

programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programmes.

The Company is driven by Group’s vision to make a difference, specifically to society by
contributing to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of life
of the local communities. The CSR Policy is available at the website of the Company at
www.gmrgroup.in.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:
Mr. K.A. Somayajulu - Chairman
Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma - Member
Mr. Mohan Rao M. - Member
3. Average net profit/loss of the company for last three financial years:
Profit Rs. 2068.77 Lakhs
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above):

41.38 lakhs

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

(a) Total amount spent for the financial year: 41.38 Lakhs
(b) Amount unspent, if any: N.A.

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7 (8)
S.No | CSR Projects or Sector in Projectsor | Amount Amount Cumulative | Amount spent:
Activities which the | programs outlay spent on the | expenditure | Direct or through
Project is (1) Local | (Budget) Projects or upto to the implementing
covered area or | Project or Programs reporting agency*
other Programs [Subheads: period (Amount Rs. in Lakh
(2) Specify | Wise Direct (Amount Rs. | )
the  State | (Amount Rs. | expenditure | in Lakh)
and district | in Lakh) on Projects
where or
projects or Programs.
programs (2)
was Overheads]
undertaken (Amount Rs.
[i.e. in Lakh)
Locations
and
Districts
(State)]
1 Community Preventive Chennai, 9.13 9.13 Implemented
Service Health Care & Dappar - through GMR
Sanitation Punjab, Varalakshmi
Medak, Foundation, the
Medchal,
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Kamareddy, CSR arm of the
Yadadri- GMR Group
Bhuvanagiri
, Nalgonda,
Suryapet,
Krishna
2 Community Promoting Chennai, 23.54 23.54
Service Education Dappar -
including Punjab,
vocational Medak,
skills Medchal,
Kamareddy,
Yadadri-
Bhuvanagiri
, Nalgonda,
Suryapet,
Krishna,
Rajam
Community Administratio - 1.71 1.71
Service n Expense
Community Promoting Chennai 7 7 Directly
Service Education
TOTAL 41.38 41.38

6.

In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the
last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for
not spending the amount in its Board’s report: Not Applicable.

Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee: The implementation and monitoring
of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company

Sd/- Sd/-

Arun Kumar Sharma K A Somayajulu
Director Chairman

DIN: 02281905 DIN: 02535927
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Annexure IX

Nomination and Remuneration Policy
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INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the
Board of Directors of every listed Company shall constitute a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. As the Company is subsidiary of GMR Infrastructure Limited, a listed company, by
virtue of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has constituted a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as required by the Listing Agreement entered into by GMR
Infrastructure Limited with the Stock Exchanges and as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

This Committee and the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

1.1. Purpose of the Policy

The Key Objectives of the Committee are:

(a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

(b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to
the Board for further evaluation.

(c) Torecommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

The Policy ensures that:

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

(b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmark; and

(c) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

1.2. Definitions

1.2.1. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
1.2.2. “Company” means “GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited.”
1.2.3. “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors, officers or employees
of a company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which
gives such directors, officers or employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe

for, the shares of the company at a future date at a pre-determined price.

1.2.4. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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1.2.5.

1.2.6.

1.2.7.

1.2.8.

1.2.9.

1.3.

“Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” means Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.
(As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following are whole-time Key Managerial
Personnel:

(i)  Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or the Manager and in their absence a

whole-time Director;

(ii)  Company Secretary; and

(iii)  Chief Financial Officer.)

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of
Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement.

“Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for
services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act,
1961.

“Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of

management one level below the executive directors, including all the functional heads.

Interpretation

Words and expressions used in this Policy shall have the same meanings respectively assigned to
them in the following acts, listing agreement, regulations, rules.

(i)
(if)
(iii)
(iv)
v)

(vi)

The Companies Act, 2013 or the rules framed thereon;
Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges;

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2009;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

2.1.

Role of the Committee

(a) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board
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2.2,

their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s
performance.

(b) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

(c) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
(d) Devising a policy on Board diversity

(e) Ensuring that the Board comprises of a balanced combination of Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors;

(f) All information about the Directors/ Managing Directors / Whole time Directors / Key
Managerial Personnel i.e., background details, past remuneration, recognition or awards,
job profile shall be considered and disclosed to shareholders, where required;

(g) The Committee shall take into consideration and ensure the compliance of provisions
under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointing and fixing remuneration of
Managing Directors / Whole-time Directors;

(h) While approving the remuneration, the Committee shall take into account financial
position of the Company, trend in the industry, qualification, experience and past
performance of the appointee;

(i) The Committee shall be in a position to bring about objectivity in determining the
remuneration package while striking the balance between the interest of the Company and

the shareholders;

Composition of the Committee

2.3.

(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three (3) Directors, all of whom shall be non-
executive Directors and at least half shall be Independent.

(b) The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable statutory requirement.

(c) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.
(d) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.
(e) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.

Chairman of the Committee

(a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.

(b) Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not
Chair the Committee.
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(c) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall
choose one amongst them to act as Chairman.

(d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be present at the Annual
General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’

queries.

2.4. Frequency of the Meetings of the Committee

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

2.5. Committee Member’s Interest

(a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

(b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Committee.

2.6. Voting at the Meeting

(a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of
votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be
deemed a decision of the Committee.

(b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

2.7. Minutes of the Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or
the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at
the subsequent Board and Committee meeting.

3. APPLICABILITY

This Policy is Applicable to:
(a) Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent)
(b) Key Managerial Personnel
(c) Senior Management Personnel
(d) Other employees as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

4. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

4.1. Appointment criteria and qualifications
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(a) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Agreement,

other applicable laws, if any and GMR Group HR Policy, the Committee shall identify and
ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for
appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board
his / her appointment.

(b) The Committee has discretion to decide the adequacy of qualification, expertise and

experience for the concerned position.

(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing

4.2,

Director / Whole-time Director / Manager who has attained the age of seventy years.
Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age
of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on
the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the
justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

Term / Tenure

4.2.1.

4.2.2.

4.3.

Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial Personnel)

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Personnel for a
term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one
year before the expiry of term.

Independent Director

(a) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the
Board of the Company and will be eligible for re appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

(b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but
such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years
of ceasing to become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years,
be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either
directly or indirectly.

(c) At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number
of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed
companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company.

(d) The maximum number of public companies in which a person can be appointed as a
director shall not exceed ten.
For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a person can be appointed as
director, directorship in private companies that are either holding or subsidiary
company of a public company shall be included.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
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The company shall familiarize the Independent Directors with the company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business
model of the company, etc., through various programmes.

4.4, Evaluation

Subject to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the
Committee shall carry out the evaluation of Directors periodically.

4.5, Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made
thereunder or under any other applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Committee may
recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP, subject to
the provisions and compliance of the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

4.6. Retirement

The Director, KMP and Personnel of Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will
have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Personnel of Senior Management in the same
position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, in the interest and
for the benefit of the Company.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, KMP AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

4.7. General

(a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Personnel will be
determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The
remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.

(b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managerial Personnel shall be as per
the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the
time being in force.

(c) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended
by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the
Shareholders in the case of Managerial Personnel.

(d) Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-time
Director, Manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary for
indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of any negligence, default,
misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in relation to
the company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the
remuneration payable to any such personnel.
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4.8.

Remuneration to Managerial Personnel, KMP, Senior Management and Other
Employees

4.8.1.

4.8.2.

4.8.3.

4.8.4.

4.8.5.

4.9.

Fixed Pay

Managerial Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by
the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the statutory
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being
in force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s
contribution to provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be
decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and
approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the
Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with
such provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration

If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she
shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for
the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless
permitted by the Central Government.

The remuneration to Personnel of Senior Management shall be governed by the GMR
Group HR Policy.

The remuneration to other employees shall be governed by the GMR Group HR Policy.

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director

4.9.1.

49.2.

Remuneration / Commission

The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.

Sitting Fees

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof.

Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided
in the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may
be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

The sitting fee paid to Independent Directors and Women Directors, shall not be less than
the sitting fee payable to other directors.
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4.9.3. Limit of Remuneration / Commission
Remuneration / Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by
shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company
computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

4.9.4. Stock Options

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

5. DISCLOSURES

The Company shall disclose the Policy on Nomination and Remuneration on group’s website
www.gmrgroup.in.

6. AMENDMENT

Any amendment or modification in the Listing Agreement and any other applicable regulation
relating to Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall automatically be applicable to the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT -
il

TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GMR POCHANPALLI
EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED (‘the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March
31,2019, the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Avdit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code-of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountamis of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone linancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilied our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significancc
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.
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For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context. a
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters,
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below.
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

a.  Provision for periodic major maintenance
Provision for periodic major maintenance of project roads requires technical evaluations
and critical accounting estimates and judgments.

We have obtained an assurance over the appropriateness of management's assumptions and
methods applied in the calculating the provision for periodic major maintenance by carrying
out the following procedures, amongst others:

* Obtained the management's calculation of the provision for periodic major maintenance
of project roads which is made in accordance with technical evaluation and the
Company's policy and checked the assumptions made by the management and its
technical team.

* We have obtained agreement entered between the parties concerned and supporfing
documents for major maintenance.

* We have also considered the appropriateness of the provision based on the Company's
historical expericnce by evaluating the managements' assumptions against provision for
periodic major maintenance of project roads with reference to historical track record
with the same customer,

* Performed discussion with those charged with governance with regard to the
significant management judgement that has been considered in assessing
appropriateness and adequacy of the provision made in books in this regard;

* Ensured appropriateness of the disclosures in the standalone finaricial statements in
accordance with the relevant requirements of Ind As.

Other matters
The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 were
audited by M/s Luthra & Luthra LLP. Chartered Accountants, who expressed an unmodified

opinion on those standalone financial statements on April 24, 2018.
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Information other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thercon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The
other information comprises the information included in Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon. The report containing other information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and ve
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When
we read the report containing other information, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to’ communicate the matter to those charged with
governance. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ~

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management of the Company is responsiblec
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
management of the Company either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so. .

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Stundalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurancc is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standard on
Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered 1naterial if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentionai omiissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. '

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and conterit of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identificd misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit {indings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, e
give in the *Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specificd under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5
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¢) on the basis of the written representutions received from the directors as off March
31, 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, nope of the directors is

disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in *Annexure B’; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the: Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position to the extent quantifiable in its standalone financial statements — Refer
Note No. 30 to the standalone financial statements;

il. the Company did not have any long-term contracls including derivative
contracts for which therc were any material foresceable losses. Refer Note No.
32 to the standalone financial statements;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Invastor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership Number: 035671

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07.05.2019
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

In terms of the Annexure referred to in our report to the members of GMR POCHANPALLI
EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED (‘the Company’) on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2019, we report that:

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipments.

b) Fixed assets have not been verified by the management of the company during the
year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

- examination of the records of the Company, the company does not own any freehold

immovable properties and the Company does not have any lease/sublease deed on
leasehold land registered in the name of the company.

ii)  The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals and in
our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material,

iii)  As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has granted unsecured
loans to bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

a) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted to the
bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act were
not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

b) In the case of loans granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in payment of the
principal and interest as stipulated.

¢) There are no overdue amounts remaining outstanding at the year end.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 of the Act in respect of grant
of loans, providing guarantees and sccurities, as applicable. Further, the Company is an
infrastructure Company and accordingly section 186 of the Act is not applicable.
Consequently requircment of paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provision of paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. There are no
orders from Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of secount maintained by the company, pursuant to
the Rules made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost records as
prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and we are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

vii)  a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has
generally been regular in depositing the amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including employee’s state insurance,
provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, service tax, sales tax, duty of
customs, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not Lave any dues

" on account of duty of excise.

According to the information and explanations given 10 us, no undisputed statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months. Refer
Note no. 33 for computation and payment of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under
Section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the
Company, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, sales tax, service
tax, duty of customs or value added tax or cess or other material statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of debentures to a financial institutions and
banks. [Further, the Company has not taken any loan from banks and financial mmtuuons
during the year.

iX)  According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company,
the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offcr or further public offer
(including debt instuments) during the year. The Company during the year has not taken
term loans from banks and financial institutions hence question of utilisation of term loans
does not arise.
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X)  During the course of our examination of books of account and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and cxplanations given to us, we have not come across with
any material fraud by Company or any fraud on Company by its officers or employees,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have been informed of such case by the
Management,

xi)  According to the information and cxplanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial
remuncration in accordance with the adequate approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

Xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company, during the year has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable

Xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership Number: 035671

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07.05.2019
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repoiting of GMR
POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Managemen(’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adhesence to company’s polieies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance
Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of inteinal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we cornnly with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgerent, including the
assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriafe to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial¢ Is system over financial
reporting. '

Contd...2
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control ever financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reperting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinien

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations 2iven to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system ovel
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operaling
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the cssential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Fmancxal Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

Cldit

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership Number: 635671

Place: Murnbazi
Date: 07.05.2019

Continuation sheet...



GMR Pochanp2'li Expressways Limited |
CIN : U45200KA2005PLC049327

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

7
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Note March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 62.26 60.98
Financial Assets
Investments 3 - -
Loans 4 14.59 2,71459
Other financial assets 5 24,661.74 34,95584
QOther non-current assets 6 '1,508.85 1,182.56
Total Non-Current Assets 26,247.44 38,913.97
Current Assets
Inventories 7 B.79 1854
Financial Assets
Investments 3 4,016.01 1,040.44
Cash and cash equivalents B 630.83 4,630.25
Bank balances other than above 9 646.34 1,680.01
Loans 4 25,968.00 17,635.10
Other financial assets 5 7,232.83 9,530.28
Other current assets 6 9,486.72 264.86
Total Current Assets 47,989.52 34,799.48
TOTAL ASSETS 74,236.96 73,713.45
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 10 13,800.00 13,800.00
Other equity 11 8,044.04 8,022.94
Total Equity 21,844.04 21,822.94
LIABIUTIES
Non-current Liabilities
rinancial Liabilities
Long term borrowings 12 35,220.96 35,059.87
Provisions 13 57.93 6,266.66
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 - -
Total Non-current Liabilities (35,278.89 45,326.53
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 14 207 1.71
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (a) above 14 797.04 110.84
Other financial liabilities 15 5,712.57 5,457.50
Other current liabilities 16 924.44 77.20
Provisions 13 9,080.88 185.61
Current tax liabilities (net) 17 597.03 731.12
Total Current Liabilities 17,114,03 6,563.98
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 74,236.96 73,713.45
Significant accounting policies 1 - -
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W /

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership No.: 035671

Date :07.05.2019
Place : Mumbai

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

%Qp‘)(\,’/'-
Arun Kumar Sharma

Director
DIN: 02281905

Amit Kumar

Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.500164
Date :07.05.2019
Place : New Delhi

!

Paradjeet Singh
Company Secretary
Membership no.A18789

jarang Lal Gupta
Director
DIN: 75777
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GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
CIN : U45200KA2005PLC049327

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

’
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Note March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
INCOME
Revenue from operations 18 5,636.82 7,951.60
Other Income 19 2,850.53 2,447.37
Total Income 8,487.35* 10,398.97
EXPENSES
Operating expenses 20 737.46 2,390.49
Employee benefits expense 21 289.14 886.35
Finance costs 22 5,937.01 4,924.85
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 948 8.01
Other expenses 24 632.58 534.31
Total Expenses 7,605.68 8,744.01
Profit for the year before taxation 881.67 1,654.96
Tax Expense:
Current tax 17 322.98 537.94
Deferred tax 17 -
Income tax for earlier years - 0.88
322,98 , 538.82
.
Profit for the year after tax 558.69 1,116.14
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ttems that will not be reclassified te profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 17.28 (11.23)
Income tax effect 17 - -
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year, net of tax 17.28 {11.23)
Total comprehensive income for the year 575.97 1,104.91
Earnings per equity share: (face value of equity shares of Rs.10 each)
Basic 25 0.40 081
Diluted 25 c.40 0.81

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 10172

CALA

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership No.: 035671

Date :07.05.2019
Place : Mumbal

For and on behalf of

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

Nu—

—

Arun Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN: 02281905

Amit Kumar
Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.500164

Date :07.05.2019
Place : New Delhi

jarang Lal Gupta
Director
DI 75777

L

Parafnjeet Singh
Company Secretary
Membership no.A18789
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GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
CIN : U45200KA2005PLC049327

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

A. Equity Share Capital

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Note  March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 10 13,800.00 13,800.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 10 = =
Balance at the end of the year 10 13,800.00 13,800.00
B. Other Equity
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Equity component Reserves and surplus Total
of financial Debenture Retained earnings  [Refer Note No.11]
instruments - redemption reserve
preference shares
Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018
Balance as at April 1, 2017 3,620.95 5,414.82 (2,117.74) 65,918.03
Profit for the year 1,116.14 1;116.14
Other comprehensive income :

Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans (11.23) {11.23)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 3,620.95 5,414.82 (1,012.83) 8,022.94
Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019
Balance as at April 1, 2018 3,620.95 5,414.82 {1,012.83) 8,022.94
Ind AS 115 transitional adjustments [Refer note no.31] (554.87) (554.87)
Profit for the year 558.69 558.69
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans 17.28 17.28
Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve from - 3,844.62 (3,844.62)
statement of profit and loss [Refer note no.11(a)]

Balance as at March 31, 2019 3,620.95 9,259.44 (4,836.35) 8,044.04
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership No.: 035671

Date :07.05.2019
Place : Mumbai

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

%@9"\0’ S
ArunTumar Sharnra™

Director
DIN: 02281905

Amit Kumar
Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.500164

Date : 07.05.2019
Place : New Delhi

rang Lal Gupta
Director
DIN/OY175777

e

Pardmjeet Singh

Company Secretary

Membership no.A1878%
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GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
CIN : U45200KA2005PLC049327

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

’ '

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars ; March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit for the year * 881.67 1,654.96
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and amortisation 9.49 8.01
Interest and finance charges 5,937.01 4,924.85
Major maintenance expenses 2,256.24 2,038.48
Profit on sale of Investment (52.36) (136.76)
Fixed assets written off - 0.12
Reameasurements of defined benefit plans 17.28 (11.23)
Interest income on bank deposit and others (2,693.76) (2,296.02)
Excess provision written back (97.30) (0.22)
6,258.27 6,182.19
Adjustments for Movement in Working Capital:
Decrease / (increase) in non-current/current financial and other assets (1,254.83) 631.16
Decrease / (increase) in Inventories 9.75 (11.65)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables and financial/other liabilities 892.64 (5.54)
Increase / (decrease) in Provision (223.57) 174.77
Cash From/(used In) Operating activities 5,682.26 6,970.93
Tax (paid)/refund (456.59) (89.85)
Net Cash From/(used In) Operating activities 5,225.67 6,881.08
8 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10.77) (20.74)
Sale of investments in related parties 0.04 -
Decrease/(increase) in current Investments (2,923.25) 5,728.25
Interest Income on bank deposit and others 2918.04 23813
Decrease/(increase) in Loan to Related Parties (5,652.07) (4,032.00)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Bank Balance 1,033.67 1,120.00
Annuity received net of payment under service concession agreement 2,942.95 1,805.77
Cash From/(used In) Investing Activities (1,691.39) 4,839.41
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of debentures (3,688.99) (3,363.00)
Interest and finance charges paid (3,844.71) (4,157.54)
Cash From/(used In) Financing Activities (7,533.70) (7,520.54)
D Net Increase / decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C] (3,999.42) 4,199.95
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the year 4,630.25 430.30
Cash and Cash Equivaients as at end of the year 630.83 4,630.25

Contd..
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GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited’
CIN : U45200KA2005PLC049327

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

’

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash in hand 032 013
Balances with banks
- Current account 630.51 60.12
- Fixed deposits - 4,570.00
Total 630.83 4,630.25
Notes :

to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

2 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Statement of Cash Flows as referred

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Opening balance Cash flows - Non-cash / fair value  Closing balance
repayments changes

For the year ended March 31, 2019

Liability portion of preference shares - 199.64 2,068.49
Long-term external borrowings (3,688.99) 22.73 37,191.03
For the year ended March 31, 2018

Liability portion of preference shares - 180.37 1,868.85
Long-term external borrowings (3,363.00) 24.83 40,857.29

3 The previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

Elidaiay -

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership No.: 035671

Date :07.05.2019
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

Director
DIN: 02281905

Amit Kumar

Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.500164

Date :07.05.2019
Place : New Deihi

jarang Lal Gupta
Director
DI 175777

Pardmjeet Singh
Company Secretary

Membership no.A187839
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GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
CIN : U45200KA2005PLC049327

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

1.1 Company Overview
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited (the Company) is engaged in development of highways on build, operate and transfer model on annuity
basis. This entity is a Special Purpose Vehicle which has entered into a Concession Agreement with National Highways Authority of India for
carrying out the project of Design, Construction, Development, Improvement, Operation and Maintenance for«ehabilitation and strengthening
of existing 2-lane portion from km 367.000 (Adloor Yellareddy) to km 447.000 (Kalkallu), covering 80.745 kms, and Improvement, operation and
maintenance of kms 447.000 (Kalkallu) 464.000 (Gundla Pochanpalli) covering 17.00 kms on NH-7 in the state of Andhra Pradesh, to 4 lanes
under a concession on build, operate and transfer (BOT) through with private sector participation thereof.

The Company is public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at 25/1, Skip House, Museum Road,
Bangalore , Karnataka - 560025. The Company has principal place of business at Toopran, Andhra Pradesh .

The Company's Holding Company is GMR Highways Limited while ultimate Holding Company is GMR Infrastructure Limited/GMR Enterprises
Private Limited.

1.2 Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies applied by the company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below, Such accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) {to
the extent notified), The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)/Rupees in Lakhs

Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non—current based upon the requirements of Schedule IIl
notified under the Companies Act, 2013,
An asset has been classified as current if
{a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle; or
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or
() it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
(d) it Is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. All other assets have been classified as non~current.

A liability hos been classified as current when

(a) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; or

(b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

(c) It Is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

{d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date. All other liabilities have been classified as non—current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
company's has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Foreign currency and derivative transactions
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the respective transactions between the
functional currency and the foreign currency.

Monetary forelgn currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettied at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing on that date. Gains / losses arising on account of realisation / settlement of foreign currency transactions and on transiation of
foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items or on reporting ‘s monetary items at rates different from those at which
they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the
year in which they arise.

Non— monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

The gain or loss arising on transiation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e,, translation differences on itemsWi rese-fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit
——

EXDrN




GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
CIN : U45200KA2005PLC049327

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are accounted for in the
Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest cost, as the case may be, except those relating to
long-term foreign currency monetary items.

(b) Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or beforg 31 March 2016:

Exchange differences on long-term foreign currency monetary items relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the
carrying cost of the assets and depreciated over the balance life of the assets . In other cases, exchange differences are accumulated in a
"Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance period of such long-term foreign
currency monetary item by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods.

Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April 2016:
The exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency working capital loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April 2016 is
charged off or credited to profit & loss account under ind AS.

¢) Fair value measurement
The Company's measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date,
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
1) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
1) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company’s
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company's uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 — Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company's determines whether transfers
have occurred between |evels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

d) Revenue Recognition
Revenue from operations:
Finance income for concession arrangements under financial asset model is recognized using the effective interest method. Revenues from
operations and maintenance services and overlay services are recognized concession arrangements in each period as and when services are
rendered.
Effective from April 01, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-
up transition method, applied to the contracts that were not completed as of April 01, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch up
transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted and continues to be reported as per Ind AS 18 "Revenue”.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a customer or is expected to be received in exchange
for the products or services and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers. To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five step approach: (1) identify the
contract with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

The revenue is recognised when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied, which typically occurs when (or as) control over the
products or services is transferred to a customer.




GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited -
CIN : U45200KA2005PLC049327

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price.
The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and
whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price, Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis,
while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, gither as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling
price.

Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018;
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Operations and maintenance iIncome [Refer note no.31] 1,699.06 4,192.27
Finance income on financial assets 3,937.76 3,759.33
Total 5,636.82 7,951.60

Disaggregate revenue information for the year ended March 31, 2019:

The Company has presented disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers (under service concession arrangements) for the year
ended March 31, 2019 by offerings and is of the opinion that, this disaggregation best depicts the nature, amount, timing of revenues and
cash flows that are affected by the industry markets and other economic factors.

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019
Revenue by offering

Operations and maintenance 1,699.06
Financial asset 3,937.76
Total 5,636.82

The Company has not identified any disaggregated revenues based on contract types.

Performance obligations:
Revenue from periodic major maintenance are recognised as per the service concession arrangements.

The performance obligation provides the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as at end of the reporting period and
an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. The Company however has applied the practical
expedient as given in Ind AS 115 as the performance obligation on periodic major maintenance is part of a concession agreement that has
an original expected duration of more than one year. The aggregate value of performance obligation that are unsatisfied as at March 31,
2019 is Rs.8,585.49 Lakhs. Out of this company expects to recognise entire revenue within next one year.

The application of Ind AS 115 has impacted the Company’s accounting of revenue from periodic major maintenance services by recognising
the same on rendering of services on completion of performance obligations. The Company accordingly has applied the modified
retrospective approach and debited retained earnings as at April 1, 2018 by Rs.554.87 Lakhs with regard to margin amount of periodic
major maintenance as on that date. The Company has not recognised revenue on periodic major maintenance and periodic major
maintenance expenses for the year ended March 31, 2019 to the extent of Rs.2,481.86 Lakhs and Rs.2,256.24 Lakhs respectively. The
Company is expected to complete performance obligation with regard to periodic major maintenance during financial year 2019-20. Refer
note no. 31].

Assets and liabilities under service concession arrangements on which performance obligation is not satisfied are classified as contract
assets and contract liabilities respectively.

Finance i and other i

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the ec ic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of Income can be measured reliably, Interest Income Is accrued on a time basls, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on Initial recognition. Interest income s included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss.

On disposal of current investments, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the
statement of profit and loss. Such income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date.




GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited -
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1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

e} Property, Plant & Equipments
Fixed Assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects If the recognition criteria are met.
-
Recognition:
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(a) it Is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
{b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required 1o be replaced at intervals, Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included In the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met, Refer significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further
information about the recorded decommissioning provision.

Gains or losses arising from de—recognition of tangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposable proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Further, When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
equipment as a replacement If the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) Is derecognised.

Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of fixed asset and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized as fixed
assets.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e,, when the company Intends to use these during more than a period of
12 months.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight line method, up to the cost of the asset (net of residual value, inaccordance with the
useful lives prescribed under Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 which are as below:

Plant and equipments 4-15 years
Office equipments 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8-10 years
Computers 3 years

Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on assets
sold/disposed off during the year is being provided up to the dates on which such assets are sold/disposed off. Modification or extension to
an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining
useful life of that asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewad at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in an amalgamation
in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

intangible assets with finite fives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation methad for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

S
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g) Financial Assets - Receivable towards the concession arrangement from the grantor
When the arrangement has a contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset from the grantor specifically towards the concession
arrangement (in the form of grants) during the construction period or otherwise, such a right, to the extent eligible, is recorded as financial

asset In accordance with Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments,” at amortized cost. A

h) Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
In equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

i) Borrowing costs
Borrowing Cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarlly takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period they occur.

j) Inventories
Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on First In First Out basis.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

k) Lease
Finance Leases:
Where the Company is the lessee
Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item,
are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability, Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.-

Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalized on an accrual basls as per the terms of
agreements entered into with lessees.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.
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Operating Leases:

Where the Company is the lessee

Lease rentals are recognized as an expenses on a straight line basis with reference to lease terms and other considerations except where-

(i) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefit derived from the assetdaken or given on lease.; or

(i) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases

Lands obtained on leases, where there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term shall
generally be classified as finance leases. The minimum lease payments include upfront premium paid plus any annual recurring lease rental
which is amortized over the lease term.

I} Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the
company's cash generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally
covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the
fifth year.

impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously revalued tangible fixed
assets, where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. In this case, the impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up
to the amount of any previous revaluation.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment s made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized Impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assets recoverable
amount since the last impalrment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and Loss unless the asset Is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

m) Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and capital commitments

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company's has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company's expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate assat, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating
to a provision is pr d in the st of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost. —
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n) Retirement and other Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans.
All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee
renders the related service.
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that
the pre-payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term empioyee benefit. The company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes, Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The
company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 menths after the reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Grawity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation
under projected unit credit {PUC) method.

The company recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the company has a present obligation as a resuit of past
event, it is probable that an outflow . of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the balance sheet
date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market ‘ yields at the
balance sheet date on government bonds.

Remeasurements

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in
which they occur. Rer ts are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

> The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

> The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

o) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.
i) Financial assets
Initial gnition and ement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are only classified as Debt instruments at amortised cost.
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Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR, The EIR amortisation is included In finance income In the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company's of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

>The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

> The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred |ts rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables
and bank balance

b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a
significant Increase In the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL Is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
Instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase In credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-
month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:
> All contractual terms of the financial Instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of
the financial instrument, However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then
the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

> Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and
loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

> Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is Present S 3T-o1o) e, i.e,, as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net g i&bﬁw "
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying afduiit. g
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ii) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,

payables, as appropriate. A
All financial liabilities are recognised Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payabies, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings etc.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits received.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

p) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original
maturity periods of three months or less.

q) Earning per share
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpese of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.3 Key accounting judg 1ts, estimates and ptions
The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

The estimate and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which are estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Significant judgements and the estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities, provision for employee benefits and others
provisions, commitments and contingencies and fair value measurements of investments.

i) Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions :

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Income tax
Deferred tax assets are recognised for Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit Entitlement to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the same can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. Refer Note No.17

b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values, Judgements

kg
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¢) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal and
contractual claims, By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The
assessment of the existence, and potential guantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use
of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

d) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long term nature, a defined benefit obligation Is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at the interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates in India.

Further detalls about gratuity obligations are given in note no.37

ii) Significant judgements :
a) Provision for periodic major maintenance (overlay activities)

As per the terms of concession agreement, the Company is required to carry out periedic major maintenance of project roads once in every
five years which requires technical evalutation and critical assumptions, accounting estimates and judgements. The management has
estimated the cost to be incurred on such periodic major maintenance to recognise the provision as per the requirements of IND AS 37.
Further details are given in note no.13

1.4 New and amended Ind AS effective as on April 1, 2018
As per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018, the Company has adopted following amendments made to Ind AS for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2018:

a)

b)

<)

Ind AS 115, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’:

This Accounting standard replaced the Ind AS 18, ‘Revenue’. The Company has applied the Accounting Standard for the first time during the
year, using the cumulative catch-up transition method for the contracts that were not completed as of April 01, 2018. In accordance with
the cumulative catch up transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted and continues to be reported as per
Ind AS 18 “Revenue”.

The impact on account of applying the erstwhile Ind AS18 'Revenue’, instead of ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contract with Customers', on the
statement of profit and loss of the Company for the year ended and as at March 31, 2019 is given in detail in note no.31.

Effective April 1, 2018 the company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. There is no impact on account of
adoption of this amendment,

Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses; The amendments clarify that an entity needs to
consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may Include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount. These
amendments apply retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest
comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without
allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that
fact. There 13 no impact on account of adoption of this amendment.
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1.5 Introduction of new standards and amendments to existing standards issued but not effective as on April 1, 2019

a)

b)

<

Ind AS 116 Leases:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard, ind
AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations, The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, reeasurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the essor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced
disclosure requirements for lessees.

Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17, The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, The standard permits two possible methods of transition!

> Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

> Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial
application. Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

> Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

> An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease
recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. Certain practical expedients are available under
both the methods.

The Company continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The ultimate impact on leases
resulting from the application of Ind AS 116 will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many variables, including, but not limited
10, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of business. The Company's considerations also include, but are not limited to,
the comparability of its financial statements and the comparability within its industry from application of the new standard to its
contractual arrangements. The Company has established an implementation team to implement Ind AS 116 related to leases and it
continues to evaluate the changes to accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of ind AS 116 on the financial statements will only be possible once the implementation
project has been completed.

Ind AS 19 Empioyee Benefits - plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Carporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for
plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an entity:

> to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

> to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or 2 gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus
was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling. Effective date for application of this amendment is annual
perlod beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The company |s evaluating the impact of the amendment on the financial position, results of
operation and cash flow.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tox Treatments @

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be
applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when
there Is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability
of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their
Income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when
determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The standard permits two possible
methods of transition:

> Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented
in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and

> Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without
adjusting comparatives. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial
application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.
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1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

d)

e

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with
accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity ogginally recognised those past
transactions or events. Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The effect on
adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the financial statements.

Prepayment Features with Negotive Compensation, Amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments :

This amendment enables entities to measure certain pre-payable financials assets with negative compensation at amortised cost. These
assets, which include some loan and debt securities, would otherwise have to be measured at fair value through profit and loss. Negative
compensation arises where the contractual terms permit the borrower to prepay the instrument before its contractual maturity, but the
prepayment amount could be less than unpaid amounts of principal and interest. However, to qualify for amortised cost measurement, the
negative compensation' must be 'reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract’.

That Is, when a financial liability measured at amortised cost is modified without this resulting in derecognition, a gain or loss should be
recognised in profit or loss, The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between the original contractual cash flows and the modified
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The interpretation Is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

The company is evaluating the impact of the amendment on the financial position, results of operation and cash flow.

Annual Improvements to ind AS :

ind AS 23, ‘Borrowing Cost’- clarified that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings.

Ind AS 103, 'Business Combination’- clarified that obtaining control of a business that is a joint operation is a business combination
achieved in stages. The acquirer should re-measure its previously held interest in the joint operation at fair value at the acquisition date.

Ind AS 111, ‘Joint arrangements’- clarified that the party obtaining joint control of a business that is a joint operation should not measure
its previously held interest in joint operation.

Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes'- clarified that the income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified as equity should be
recognised according to where the past transactions or events that generated distributable profits were recognised. These requirements
apply to all income tax consequences of dividends.

Previously, it was unclear whether the income tax consequences of dividend should be recognised in profit or loss, or in equity, and the
scope of the existing guidance was ambiguous.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019

The company is evaluating the impact of the amendment on the financial position, results of operation and cash flow.

9% Sl
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Notes to the financial statements

3 Investments

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

A
March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Non Current Investments

Non Trade Investments
Investments in associates (Unquoted, valued at cost)
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited

Nil (March 31, 2018: 1) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up

GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited
Nil (March 31, 2018: 1 ) shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up

Total non-current investments

Current Investments

Other than trade investments, Unquoted
Investments in Mutual Funds

At fair value through profit and loss

ICICI Prudential - Super Institutional - Growth

1,458,148 836 units, NAV of Rs.275.419 (March 31, 2018 : Rs.405,806.942 units, NAV of

Rs.256,388)

Total current Investments

4,01601

1,040.44

4,016.01

1,040.44

Total Invest

4,016.01

1,040.44

Aggregate amount of unguoted non-current investments

Aggregate amount of Impairment in the value of non-current Investments

Aggregate amount of unguoted current investments
Aggregate net asset value of unquoted current investments

4 Loans

4,011.00
4,016.01

1,037.87
1,040.44

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Non-current:
Carried at amortised cost
Loan Recelvables — considered good - secured

Loan Receivables — considered good - unsecured
Loans and advances to :
Related parties [Refer note no.38)

Security deposits
with related parties [Refer note no.38]
with others

Loan Recelvables which have significant increase in credit risk *
Loan Receivables — credit Impaired *
Total

Current:
Carried at amortised cost
Loan Receivables — considered good - secured

Loan Receivables — considered good - unsecured
Loans and advances to
Related parties
Employees

Security deposits
with related parties
with others

Loan Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk*
Loan Receivables = credit Impaired*

T 70\ 8 S5

1428
031

2,700.00

14.28
031

14.59

2,714.59

25,964.07
141

239
013

17,612.00
0.58

22.39
0.13

25,968.00

17,635.10

Tot /A A

25,982.59

20,349.69




GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
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Notes to the financial statements

Notes:

(i) An unsecured loan of Rs.5,080.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rs.5,080.00 Lakhs) given to GMR Highways Ltd. shall b8 repayable within 1 year from
date of agreement.

{i1) An unsecured loan of Rs.7,182.00 Lakhs {March 31, 2018 : Rs.3,732.00 Lakhs) given to GMR Infrastructure Ltd and shall be repayable within 1 year,
(ill) An unsecured loan of Rs.NIl (March 31, 2018 : Rs.1,000.00 Lakhs) given to GMR Enterprises Private Limited and was repaid during the year.

{v) An unsecured loan of Rs Nil (March 31, 2018 ; Rs.6,800.00 Lakhs) given to Dhruvi Securities Pvt Ltd and shall be repayable within 1 year.

{v) An unsecured loan of Rs.2,000.00 Lakhs[March 31, 2018 : Rs.2,700.00 Lakhs) which was disclosed under non-current loans) given to Dhruvi
Securities Pvt Ltd and shall be repayable within 3 years.

{v) An unsecured loan of Rs.741.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rs Nil) given to GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited and shall be repayable
within 1 year.

{v) An unsecured loan of Rs.494.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rs Nil) given to GMR Tun| Anakapalll Expressways Limited and shall be repayable within 1
year,

{v) An unsecured loan of Rs.7,500.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rs Nil) novated in favour of Kakinada SEZ Limited from Dhruvi Securities Pvt Ltd and shall
be repayable within 1 year

(v) An unsecured loan of Rs.1,967.07 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rs Nil) novated in favour of GMR SEZ and Port Holdings Private Limited from Dhruvi
Securities Pvt Ltd and shall be repayable within 1 year.

The fair value of Non current and current loans are not materially different from the carrying value presented.

* -There are no loans receivables which are credit impaired or which have a significant increase in credit risk based on the information available with
the Company.

5 Other financial assets

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current:
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considerad good
Recelvable under service concession arrangements 24,653.92 34,660.97
Interest accrued on loan to related parties [Refer note no,38] - 287.05
Deposit with government departments 7.82 7.82
Total 24,661.74 34,955.84
Current:
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Receivable under service concession arrangements 1,476.23 3,826.73
Receivable towards change of scope work and others 315.16 -
Interest-accrued on loan to related parties [Refer note no.38) 434423 4,586.89
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 1238 28.01
Insurance claims receivable 6.21 10.03
Penalty paid under protest [Refer note no.30] 1,078.62 1,078.62
Total 7,232.83 9,530.28

Total 31,894.57 44,486.12
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Notes to the financial statements

6 Other assets
A Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current:
Unsecured, considered good
Mobilisation Advance 1,508.85 1,182.56
Total 1,508.85 1,182.56
Current:
Unsecured, considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 11809 169.27
Contract assets under service concession arrangements 8,585 .49 3
Prepaid expenses 598.12 95.12
Balances with government departments 185.02 0.47
Total 9,486.72 264.86
Total 10,995.57 1,447.42
7 Inventories
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Stores and spares [Refer note (b) below) 879 18.54
Total 8.79 18.54
Notes:
3) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
b) For charges created on Inventories refer note no,12.
8 Cash and cash equivalents
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash in hand 032 0.13
Balances with banks
- Current account 630,51 60.12
- Fixed deposits - 4,570.00
Total 630.83 4,630.25
Note;
a) For charges created on cash and bank balances refer note no.12.
9 Other bank balances
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Mareh 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Fixed deposit with banks [Refer note (b (& (c) below] 646.34 1,680.01
Total 646.34 1,680.01
Note:

a) For charges created on cash and bank balances refer note no.12.

b) Includes Fixed deposit of Rs. Nil [March 31, 2018 Rs.1,000.00 Lakhs] are under lien to overdraft facility of Rs.800.00 Lakhs pertaining to Dhruvi

Securities Private Limited

€) Includes margin deposit of Rs.311.33 Lakhs [March 31, 2018 : Rs.300.00 Lakhs] kept against bank guarantee
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Notes to the financial statements

Break-up of financlal assets

Rupees in Lakhs

March 31, 2019

Particulars March 31, 2018
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Investment in equity Instruments - -
Loans to group companies 25,964.07 20,312.00
Loans to employees 1.41 0.58
Security deposit 17.11 3711
Receivable under service concession 26,130.15 38,487.70
Cash and cash equivalents 630.83 4,630.25
Fixed deposit with banks (including interest accrued) 658.72 1,708.02
Other financial assets 5,752.04 5,970.41
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Investments in mutual funds 4,016.01 1,040.44
Total 63,170.34 72,186.51
10 Equity share capital
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Authorised
138,100,000 [March 31, 2018 : 138,100,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each 13,810.00 13,810.00
4,590,000 [March 31, 2018 : 4,530,000 preference shares of Rs.100 each 4,590.00 4,590.00

18,400.00 18,400.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
138,000,000 [March 31, 2018 : 138,000,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each 13,800.00 13,800.00
Total 13,800.00 13,800.00
Notes:
a) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each Numbers Rupees in Lakhs
March 31, 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 138,000,000 13,800.00
Shares issued during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 138,000,000 13,800.00
March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 138,000,000 13,800.00
Shares issued during the year - .
Balance at the end of the year 138,000,000 13,800.00

b} Terms to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pay dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of director Is subject to the approval of the sharehoider in

ansuing Annual General meeting

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Terms to Preference Shares

8% Redeemable, Non-cumulative and Nan-Convertible preference shares of Rs.100 each. Preference Shares are redeemable at premium at the option
of the Board of Directors of the Company on October 15, 2026, with one day prior notice to the preference shareholders. Refer note nos.11 and 12 for

equity and liabllities portion of Preference Shares.
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d) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder Numpers % of holding
ity sh f Rs. 1 h

March 31, 2019

GMR Highways Limited, the immediate holding Company 135,929,996 98.50%

March 31, 2018

GMR Highways Limited, the immediate holding Company 135,929,996 98.50%

d f h

March 31, 2019

GMR Infrastructure Limited, the ultimate holding Company 4,450,000 100.00%

March 31, 2018

GMR Infrastructure Limited, the uitimate holding Company 4,450,000 100.00%

e) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Name of Shareholder Numbers Rupees in Lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

March 31, 2019

GMR Highways Limited, the immediate holding Company 135,929,996 13,583.00
GMR Infrastructure Limited, the ultimate holding Company 1,380,000 138.00
GMR Energy Limited, a subsidiary of GIL and an asscciate company 690,000 69.00
March 31, 2018

GMR Highways Limited, the immediate holding Company 135,929,996 13,593.00
GMR infrastructure Limited, the ultimate holding Company 1,380,000 138.00
GMR Energy Limited, a subsidiary of GIL and an associate company 690,000 69.00
Preference shares of R5.100 each

March 31, 2019

GMR Infrastructure Limited, the ultimate holding Company 4,450,000 4,450.00
March 31, 2018

GMR infrastructure Limited, the ultimate holding Company 4,450,000 4,450.00

f) As per records of the Company including its register of share holders/members and other declarations received from share holders regarding
beneficial interest, the above share holding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

g} The Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

11 Other equity

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Equity component of Preference shares
Dpening balance 3,62095 3,620.95
Add: Adjustment for the year . -
Closing balance 3,620.95 3,620.95
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening balance 5,414 .82 5,414.82
Add: Transferred from the statement of profit and loss [Refer note (a) below] 3,844 62 =
Closing balance 9,259.44 5,414.82
Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance (997.11) (2,113.25)
Less: Ind AS 115 transitional adjustments [Refer note no.31) (554.87) -
Add: Profit for the year 558,69 1,116.14
Less: Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve during the year [Refer note {a) below] (3,844.62) -
Closing balance (4,837.91) (997.11)
Other comprehensive income
Opening balance (15.72) (4.49)
Remeasurements gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans, net of tax effect 17.28 (11.23)
Closing balance 1.56 (15.72)

NS

Total L aNEV & o NN 8,044.04 8,022.94

“©
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Notes to the financial statements

Nature and purpose of reserve: e

a) Debenture Redemption Reserve:

The Company is reguired to create Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) as on March 31, 2019 to the extent of Rs.9,319.25 Lakhs (25% of outstanding
non-convertible debentures) out of the profits of the company available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of debentures in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company, during the year has created DRR out of profits of earlier Financlal Years 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 aggregating to Rs.3,285.93 Lakhs
and out of current year profit of Rs.558.69 Lakhs and balance DRR amount to the extent of Rs.59,81 Lakhs is not created as per the provisions of the
Companles Act, 2013 in view of inadequate profit during the year.

b) Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the reguirements of the Companies Act,
2013. No dividends are distributed by the Company during the year.

¢) Equity component of related party transaction

Equity Component of Related Party Transactions represents the difference in carrying value and fair value of Preference Shares issued to its parent on
initlal recognition, Falr value Is determined by discounting the estimating the cash flows expected over the term of the instrument using an applicable
discount rate. The equity component of related party transactions are adjusted to the carrying amount on account of extinguishment of liability.

d) Other Comprehensive Income : represants Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans and its Income Tax Effects.

12 Long term Borrowings

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Long-term borrowings:
Secured, at amortized cost
Non-convertible debenture [Refer note (a) below] 33,152.47 37,191.02
Unsecured, at amortized cost
Liability component of compound financial instruments
Non-cumulative non-convertible preference shares issued to the ultimate holding company [Refer 2,068.49 1,868.85
Note (b) below)
Total 35,220.96 39,059.87
Notes:

a) Secured non-convertible debenture:

During the financial year 2009-2010, the Company has issued 9.38% 6,500 Rated, taxable, listed, redeemable, non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) of
the face value of Rs.10,00,000 each which are which are listed on The National Stock Exchange of India. Debentures are repayable in 34 half yearly
unequal instalments commencing from April 15, 2010 to October 15, 2026,

i) Terms of Security

The NCDs are secured by way of first charge on all the assets of the Company both movable (including future annuity receivable) and immovable
properties, both present and future but exciuding project assets (unless permitted by National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) under the
Concession agreement)

ii) Maturity profile of 9.38% redeemable non-convertible Deb es of face value of Rs.10,00,000/- each are given below:

No. of Debentures Date of Rupees in Lakhs No. of Debentures Date of Rupees in Lakhs
redemption redemption

227.50 15/10/2026 2,279.00 21940 15/04/2022 2,184.00
269.10 15/04/2026 2,691.00 21240 15/10/2021 2,124.00
218.90 15/10/2025 2,189.00 266.00 15/04/2021 2,660.00
265.00 15/04/2025 2,650.00 256.60 15/10/2020 2,566.00
257.20 15/10/2024 2,572.00 215.90 15/04/2020 2,159.00
24240 15/04/2024 2,424.00 209.20 15/10/2019 2,092.00
235.60 15/10/2023 2,356.00 196.70 15/04/2013 1,967.00
221.00 15/04/2023 2,210.00 185.70
214.40 15/10/2022 2,144.00 179.20

ill, installments falling due within a year in respect of all the above NCDs aggregating to Rs.4,038.56 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rs.3,666.27 Lakhs) have
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Notes to the financial statements

b) Non cumulative non-convertible Preference shares:

The Company had issued 44,50,000 8% Redeemable, Non-cumulative and Non-Convertible preference shares of Rs.1RC each. Preference Shares are
redeemable at premium at the option of the Board of Directors of the Company on October 15, 2026, with one day prior notice to the preference
shareholders.

As these Preference share are non cumulative and the Company Is not under obligation to pay dividend, only fair value of redemption value has been
considered as financial liablity using a market rate for an equivalent instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liabllity measured at amortised
cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on redemption. The remalnder of the proceeds Is recognised and included in Equity. Refer note
no.11 for equity portion of Preference Shares,

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance 4,450.00 4,450.00
Add: Issued during the year 2 =
Closing balance 4,450.00 4,450.00
Equity component transferred to Other Equity 3,620.95 3,620.95
Financial liability portion of preference shares 829.05 829.05
Add: Notional Interest recognized up to date 1,239.44 1,039.80
Liability portion of non convertible preference shares 2,068.49 1,868.85

13 Provisions

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current:
Provision for employee benefits 5793 144,32
Provision for pericdic major maintenance - 6,122.34
Total 57.93 6,266.66
Current:
Provision for employee benefits 1932 153.73
Provision for operation and maintenance 3042 31.88
Provision for periodic major maintenance 5,031.14 -
Total 9,080.88 185.61
Total 9,138.81 6,452.27
Note:

a) Provision for periodic major maintenance (overlay activities)

The Company has a cantractual obiigation to maintain, replace or restore infrastructure, except for any enhancement element. Cost of such obligation
is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and recognised over the period at the
end of which the overlay is estimated to be carried out. Major Overlay activities have been completed and next major overlay is expected to be carried
out in FY 2015-20.

b) Movement of provision for periodic major maintenance

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Opening Balance 6,122.34 . 3,688.52 -
Accretion during the year - 2,908.80 2,433.82 -

Transferred from non-current to current (6,122.34) 6,122.34 -
Utilised during the year o

Closing Balance - 9,031.14 6,122.34 -
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14 Trade payables

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current:
Carried at amortised cost: ;
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises [Refer Note (b} below| 2.07 i1
Retention money - others 466 4.21
Retention money - related parties [Refer note no.38] - 0.90
Payable to related parties [Refer note no.38)] 769.46 67.94
Dues to others 2292 37.79
Total 799.11 112.55
Notes:

a) The fair value of Trade payables is not materially different from the carrying value presented.

b) Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 days terms

¢) The Management is in continuous process of obtaining confirmations from its vendors regarding their registrations under the provisions of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), Under the MSMED Act, 2006 which came into force with effect from
October 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of information and records
available with the company, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. Further, in view of the
management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provision of the Act are not expected to be material. The
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 2.07 171
accounting year

The interest amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each - -
accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the - -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appeinted day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest spacified
under the MSMED Act, 2006)

The amount of interest accrued but not accounted and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting 0.67 -
year; and

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when 0.04 -
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

0.35 -
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15 Other financial liabilities

1

~

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Other financial current liabilities at amortized cost
Current maturities of long-term secured debt [Refer note no.12{a)} 4,038.56 3,666.27
Interest accrued but not due on debt 1,609.39 1,768.65
Non-trade payables

Payable to related parties [Refer note no.38) 2205 6.89

Payable to others 4257 15.69
Total 5,712.57 5,457.50
Break-up of financial liabilities Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Borrowings 37,191.03 40,857.29
Liability component of preference share capital 2,068.49 1,868.85
Trade payables 79911 112,55
Interest accrued but not due on debt 1,609.39 1,768.65
Other financial liabilities 6a.62 22.58
Total 41,732.64 44,629.92
Other liabilities

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current:
Advance received from Customers 14.92 3413
Deferred contract revenue under service concession arrangement 78050 -
Statutory dues 129.02 43.07
Total 924.44 77.20

fn
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17 Income Tax
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are: S

17.01 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit or loss section

Current Tax 32298 537,94
Deferred Tax - -
Income tax for earlier years - 0.88
Tax expense / (credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss 322.98 538.82

mprehensive in

Deferred tax related to items recognised in CCl during in the year:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans s e

Tax expense / (credit) to Other Comprehensive Income - -

Tax expense / (credit) to Total Comprehensive Income 322.98 538.82

17.02 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:;

Rup in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit for the year after tax 881.67 1,654.96
Applicable tax rate 26.00% 25.75%
Tax effect of income / (loss) (a) 229.23 426.15
Adjustments:
Tax effect on non-taxable income - (0.50)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 388.47 27.80
Tax Recognised under Section 115/B of Income Tax Act, 1961 322.98 537.94
(b) 711.45 565.24
(c)=(a+b) 940.68 591.39
Unused tax losses and allowances utilised during the year (d) (6172.70) (453.45)
Tax exp / (credit) to Total Comprehensive Income (e)=(c+d) 322.98 537.94
17.03 Provision for Income tax / Non-current tax assets
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance - Provision for Income tax / (Non-current tax assets) 731.12 289.52
Add: Current tax payable for the year 322.98 537.94
Add: Earlier year tax reversed (0.48) (6.49)
Less: Current taxes paid {456.58) (89.85)
Closing balance - Provision for Income tax / (Non-current tax assets) * 597.03 731.12
* - refer note no.33
Break-up
Provision for Income tax (net) 597.03 731,12
Non-current tax assets - -
Total 60 & X\ 731.12
Nl

~
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17 Income Tax

17.04 Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Deferred tax liability
Service concession assets (1,098.43) (1,576.36) 10,109.19 11,207.62
Borrowings (6.62) (9.60) 25.04 31.66
Equity Component of preference shares - (64.45) 1,054.42 1,054.42
Major maintenance 537.60 1111 697.03 158.423
Fair value of Investments 0.71 (1.33) 1.46 0.75
Total (a) (566.74) (1,640.63) 11,887.14 12,453.88
Deferred tax asset
Carriageways (883.13) (1,395.89) 6,622.27 7,505.40
Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets (5.30) (8.65) 28.77 3407
Annuity income offered for tax (net) 1,821.14 791.06 3,460.68 1,639.54
Liability portion of preference shares 58.13 37.23 360.92 302.79
Interest accrued on Loan to related Parties (9.37) 22.08 59.84 69.21
Provision for leave encashment (22.95) 25.29 1396 36.91
Provision for gratuity (16.89) 20.15 436 21.25
Provision for bonus (24.45) 152 4.18 2B.63
Unused tax losses (165.43) (79.25) 103.12 268.55
Unabsorbed tax depreciation (526.39) (559.26) 748.84 1,275.23
Total ({b) 225.36 (1,145.72) 11,406.94 11,181.58
Net deferred tax (assets) / liability (c)={a-b) (792.10) (494.91) 480.20 1,272.30
Deferred tax asset/(liability) not recognised {d) 792.10 494 91 (480.20) (1,272 30)

[Refer note (a) below]

Net deferred tax (assets) / liability {e)=(c+d) - - -

Note:

a) The Company, being Infrastructure Company, enjoys the benefit of tax holiday period for 10 years out of first 20 years of operations, In initial
years of operations, the Company has Incurred losses and hence had not claimed the benefit of tax holiday period. The Management expects that
all temporary differences as well as unused tax losses will be reversing in tax holiday period under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 in
view of expected future profits and accordingly, the company has not recognised the resulting deferred tax liability that is expected to reverse

during the tax holiday period.

17.05 The unused business loss and allowances is allowable in future period against taxable profit as follows: Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unused depreciation allowances available for future 2,571.55 4,379.22
taxable profit for unlimited period
Unused business loss available for future taxable profit upto:

Relating to Assessment year Available upto Assessment year
2015-16 2023-24 354,12 922.23

17.06 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only If it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities

and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax fiabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

O
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18 Revenue from operations

Y Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Operations and maintenance income [Refer note no.31) 1,699.06 4,192.27
Finance income on financial assets 3,937.76 3,759.33
Total 5,636.82 7,951.60
19 Other income
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest Income on Bank Deposit 91.94 168.51
Interest on loan to related parties 2,601.34 2,118.21
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.48 737
Unwinding interest on security deposits - 193
Profit on sale of Investments 52.36 136.76
Excess provision written back 97.30 0.22
Other non-cperating income 71 14.37
Total 2,850.53 2,447.37
20 Operating expenses
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Highway Maintenance Expenses 648.05 256.00
Major Maintenance expenses - 2,038.48
Toll/Highway Management Services 89.41 96.01
Total 737.46 350.49
21 Employee benefit expenses
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries, Perquisites & Allowance 245.89 801.23
Contribution to provident and other funds 2077 63.09
Gratuity expense 15.50 14.76
Staff welfare expenses 6.79 7.21
Staff recruitment and training cost 019 0.06
Total 289.14 886.35
22 Finance cost
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest measured at amortised cost
Interest on Debentures 3,599.07 3,935.98
Unwinding interest on liability portion of preference shares 199.64 180.37
Interest Joss on modification of Loan to related parties 32058 32467
Modification charge on service concession asset 105473 -
Unwinding Interest on major maintenance provision 653.88 394.03
Interest on delay in payment of statutory dues 006 -
Bank and other finance charges 109.05 89.80
Total 5,937.01 4,924.85
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23 Depreciation and amortization expense

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9.49 801
Amortization of intangible assets »
Total 9.49 8.01

24 Other expenses

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Consumption of Stares & Spares 14.29 32.68
Utility Expenses (including Electricity charges) 67.28 75.25
Rent 461 456
Rates and taxes 453 496
Insurance 40.82 42,13
Repairs and maintenance ( including vehicle maintenance) 36.38 4234
Travelling and conveyance 63.72 86.95
Communication costs 7.91 6.07
Printing and stationery 1.65 0.92
Legal and professional fees 305.74 207.08
Manpower Outsourcing 14.60 12.55
Directors’ sitting fees 354 334
Payment to auditor 558 5.82
Advertisement 6.41 0.50
Office Maintenance 0.84 0.19
Fixed Assets written off - 012
Meeting & Seminar 1.74 538
Books & Periodicals 0.06 0.08
Business Promotions 557 0.24
Donations 0.05 0.05
Corporate Social responsibility Expenses 41,38 -
General expenses 5.88 2.10
Total 632.58 534.31

25 Earning per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year. There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. Thus, diluted EPS

equals basic EPS,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
a) Nominal value of Equity shares {in Rupees per share) 10.00 10.00
b) Weighted average number of Equity shares at the year end (in Nos) 138,000,000 138,000,000
c) Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings (Amount in rupees) 55869 1,116.14
d) Basic/Diluted Earning per share of Rs 10/- each (in Rs.} [(c)/(b)) 0.40 0.81
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26 Disclosures on Financial Instruments
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial Instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that
contain financial instruments,

The detalls of significant accounting policies, including the criterla for recognition, the basis of measurament and the basis onawhich Income and expenses are
recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Notes to the financial statements,

26.01 Financial instruments by category

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

a) The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by gories are as follows Rupees in Lakhs
Refer As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars note  Amortised cost Fair value Fair value Amortised cost Fair value Fair value
no. through profit  through OC through profit  through OCI
or loss or loss

Financial assets:
Investments:

in equity instruments 3 - - - - -
in Mutual Funds 3 - 4,016.01 - - 1,040.44

Loans to group companies 4 25,965.48 - - 20,312.58 . -
Security deposit 4 1711 - - 3711 - -
Receivable under service 5 26,130.15 - - 38,487.70 - -
concesston

Cash and cash equivalents 8 630.83 . - 4,630.25 - -
Dther bank balances (including 9 658.72 - - 1,708.02 - -
Interest accrued)

Other financial assets 5 5,752.04 - - 5,970.41 - -
Total 59,154.33 4,016.01 - 71,146.07 1,040.44 -
Financial liabilities:

Borrowings (including interest 12 38,800.42 - - 42,625.94 - -
accrued)

Liability component of preference 12 2,068.49 - - 1,868.85 - -
share capital

Trade payables 14 799.11 - E 112,55 - -
Other financial liabilities 15 6452 - - 22.58 - -
Total 41,732.64 5 - 44,629.92 s S
Fair values

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
- The fair values of the unquoted mutual funds are based on NAV avallable at the reporting date.

26.02 Fair value hierarchy
The Company held the following assets and liabilities measured at fair value. The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing
the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted] prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

a) The foliowing table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2019:

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments in mutual funds 4,016.01 4,016.01 . -

Uabilities measured at fair value threugh profit or lass: - - - &

b) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2018:

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments in mutual funds 1,040.44 1,040,404 - -

Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or ’0)\\/—\ . < . %
PN
B
o4
=
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During the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no
transfers Into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements,

The fair value of liquid mutual funds is based on net asset value quoted price.
The Board of Directors considers the fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities to approximate their carrying xalue at the balance sheat date.

In view of all financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortised cost, there are no financial assets and liabilities to be fair valued under fair value
hierarchy.

27 Financial risk management

Financial Risk Factors
The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets is Receivable under SCA, Cash and Cash equivalents, Investment and other bank balance.

In the course of its business, the Company's exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks, The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the company's senior r Il that the
company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financia! risks are Identified, measured and managed In
accordance with the company's policies and risk objectives. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directars. The risk management frame
work aims to :

i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and Interest rate fluctuation on the Company's business plans.
il) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

27.01 Market risk
Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk. currency risk and price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings, deposits, and derivative financial Instruments. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as
at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations,
provisions.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial llabllities held at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarlly to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
Interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

The Company analysis its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. The Company's policy Is to manage its interest cost using only Interest free/ fixed
rate debts from related parties.

Interest rate sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. 50
basis points represents gement’s 1t of reasonably possible change In interest rate. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit/{loss) before tax is affected through the impact interest rate of borrowings Is as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Type of Increase/ Effect on profit before tax Effect on total equity
currenc decrease in _ March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Increase of profit INR (+)50 182.20 209.81 182.20 209.81
Decrease of profit INR ()50 (182.20) (205.81) (182.20) (209.81)

27.02 Commodity price risk
The Company Is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities which is moderated by optimising the procurement for operating activities
which require continuous procurement of road operation and maintenance materials. Therefore the Company monitors its purchases closely to
optimise the price.
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27.03 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

No cradit limits were exceeded during the reporting period other than those under litigation, and management does hot expect any losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Credit risk from balances with bank and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s
policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are
set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make payments.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is fimited as the Company generally invest In deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by International and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liguid mutual fund units for a
specified time perlod.

The carrying values of the financial assets approximate its fair values. The above financial assets are not impaired as at the reporting date. Cther
financlal assets are neither past due nor impaired at reporting date. The cash and cash equivalents are maintalned with reputed banks. Hence the
Company believes no impairment s necessary in respect of the above financial instruments.

27.04 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they become due without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation,

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintalning sufficient cash and marketable securities, the avallabllity of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity,
funding as well 3s settlement management.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flow. This Is generally carried out at by the
Company In accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash
flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these; monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal
and external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt financing plans. The Company also issues preference shares to the parent company/
group companies from time to time to ensure a liquidity balance

The following are the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities, Including the estimated interest payment on an undiscounted basis
which therefore differs from both carrying value and fair value. Floating rate interest is estimated using the prevailing interest rate at the year end.

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Financial Total amount  Repayable on Due within1  Due between1  Due after 5
liabilities payable demand year to 5 years years
carrying value

As at March 31, 2019
Borrowings 37,191.03 37,277.00 - 4,059.00 18,413.00 14,805.00
Interest accrued on debt 1,609.39 1,609.39 - 1,609.39 - -
Preference shares 2,068.49 4,450.00 - - - 4,450.00
Trade payable 799.11 799.11 - 79911 - v
Other financial liabilities 64.62 64.62 - 64.62 - -
Total 41,732.64 44,200.12 - 6,532.12 18,413.00 19,255.00
As at March 31, 2018
Borrowings 40,857.29 40,966.00 - 3,689.00 17,906.00 19,371.00
Interest accrued on debt 1,768.65 1,768.65 - 1,768.65 . .
Preference shares 1,868.85 4,450.00 - - - 4,450.00
Trade payable 11255 112,55 - 11255 - -
Other financial liabilities 2258 2258 - 22.58 - -
Total 44,629.92 47,319.78 - 5.592.78 17,906.00 23,821.00

Excessive risk concentration
The Company needs to assess the risks in relation to excessive risk concentration and the measures adopted by the Company to mitigate such risks,

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have
econcmic features that would cause their abllity to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In erder to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company's policies and procedures include specific guldelines to focus on the maintenance of a
diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks.ase-cagtrolied and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the company to
manage risk concentrations at both the relationship apd

R
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27.05 Capital management

The Company’s capltal management Is Intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the
Company.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Preference Sharg and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial

covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
orissue new shares. The Company includes within net debt, borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus total debt.

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Debt - External long term borrowings (a) 38,800.42 42,625.94
Capital Components
Equity Share Capital 13,800.00 13,800.00
Other equity 8,044.04 8,02294
Liability component of preference share capital 2,068.49 1,868.85
Total Capital (b) 23,912.53 23,691.79
Capital and debt {a+h) 6&,712.95 56_&17.73
Gearing ratic (%) (a)/|a+b) 61.87% 64.28%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amangst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the finandal covenants would
permit the bank to immediataly call Ioans and barrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

S
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28

Contingent liabilities and commitments
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

A

a. Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

. Penalty levied by National Highways Authority of India (net of amount paid under protest) [Refer note - -

no.30 below]
ii. Defaults in Tax Ceducted at Source during FY 2007-08, 2015-16 & 2018-19 as per TRACES login 6.35 -
lii. Logo fee and trade mark charges relating to financial years from 2012-13 to 2018-19 are not provided in 181.63 -

books as the management is In the process of negotiating with the related party for walve off

b.  Capital Commitments - «

29 The Supreme Court had passed an order dated February 28, 2019 stating that for the purpose of contribution to be made under the Employees Provident

Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1956 ('EPF Act'), the definition of basic wages includes all emoluments paid in cash to the employees in accordance
with the terms of their contract of employment. In view of the same, the Company Is liable to make further contribution towards Provident Fund on the
entire salary paid by it to its employees other than certain emoluments based on performance and variable. However there is no clarity on effective date
from when the liability is required to be paid by the Company in view of which the Company Is not able to estimate the provident fund liability arising in
view of the order. The Company further is of the view that the liability payable on account of retrospective effect if any will be accounted and paid on
clarification if any provided by the Provident Fund Authorities and the impact if any may not be material. The Company is in the process of taking legal
opinion in respect of the same.

30 Litigation

31

The Company had received a penalty notice from National Highways Authority of india (NHAJ) levying a penaity of Rs.1,031 Lakhs for delay in completion of
First Periodic Major Maintenance of the Project which was subsequently enhanced by CAG to Rs. 2,300 Lakhs. The penalty levied by NHAI was disputed by
the Company and same was referred to Independent Engineer for amicable resolution as per the provisions of the Concession Agreement.

NHAI has subsequently deducted Rs.1,078.62 Lakhs as penalty and damages while releasing 18th Annuity in March 2018. The Company has considered this
payment as paid under Protest in March 2019 which hitherto in March 2018 was shown under Concessionaire Receivables.

The Company vide its letter dated December 7, 2017 has invoked Arbitration proceedings against NHAI arbitrator in respect of the dispute on applicability
of performance of Periodic Major Maintenance of the road project once in every five years In the annuity Contract and appointed its nominee. Indian
Council of Arbitration has appointed the Chairman of the Arbitral Tribunal pursuant to the Order of the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, New Delhi dated
November 02, 2018, As per the direction of the Tribunal, both the parties have filed convenience compilation of all relevant provisions of contracts,
harmonious construction of interpretation of contract clauses and correspondences and the matter was posted for hearings and the hearings are in
process. The Management is of the opinion that there is no obligation of Periodic Major Maintenance every five years as per its Interpretation of annuity
contract which has been legally represented with the arbitration authority and it expects a favourable outcome during Arbitration proceedings and expects
no further liability in respect of the same and expects to recover the Penalty with hald of Rs.1,078.62 Lakhs with interest and other compensation and
accordingly has carried the amount deducted as pald under protest.

The Company had raised a claim of Rs.10,447 80 Lakhs on NHAI for the earlier years, for incurrence of expenditure on first major maintenance which is also
a subject matter of arbitration currently pending resolution in the said proceedings.

The Company during the year has also recelved a notice from NHAI for the second periodic major maintenance for the roads in respect of the tenth year of
operation, The Company has taken a stay on the said order and is awaiting the arbitration order for the guidance on the same and expects no further
liability In respect of the same. The Company under prudence however has accounted for provision for periodic major maintenance in its books of account.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 ” Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative cateh-up transition method,
applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not
been retrospectively adjusted,

In the Service Concession agreement the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each distinct
perfarmance abligation. The arrangement with the grantar generally meet the criteria for considering regular maintenance and periodic major
maintenance services as distinct performance obiigations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the revenue in respect of each
performance obligation of the contract at its relative stand alone price using the expected cost plus margin approach, For Major Maintenance and related
services, the performance obligations are satisfied only as and when the services are rendered since the customer generally obtains the control of the work
as it progresses though the provision for major maintenance as a best estimate Is recognised and measured over the period of time In terms of Ind AS 37.

The application of ind AS 115 has impacted the Company’s accounting of revenue from periodic major maintenance services by recognising the same on
rendering of services. The Company accordingly has applied the modified retrospective approach and debited retained earnings as at April 1, 2018 by

S
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The revenue from periodic major maintenance Is also subject 10 pending arbitration proceedings as discussed In note no.30 above. The management is of
the opinion that if the outcome of the arbitration proceedings in company’s favour, then the company need not carryout periodic major maintenance once
in five years or there is any change In period then the revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 and provision made for periedic major maintenance may
undergo change in the year of adjudicating the matter subject to future litigations if any.

~

32 The Manag 1t of the Company is of the opinion that no provision Is required to be made in its books of account other than those already provided if
any, with respect to any material foreseeable losses under the applicable laws, accounting standards or long term contracts. The Company does not have
any derivative contracts.

33 Non-consideration of Service Concession Agreement adjustment for the purpose of computing Income under section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961:

The Company had entered into concession agreement with National Highways Authority of India for rehabilitation and strengthening of existing 2-lane
portion from km 367.000 (Adioer Yellareddy) to km 447.000 (Kalkallu), covering 80.745 kms, and Improvement, operation and maintenance of kms
447.000 (Kalkallu) — 464,000 (Gundls Pochanpalll) covering 17,00 kms on NH-7 In the state of Andhra Pradesh, to 4 lanes under a concession on build,
| operate and transfer (BOT),

Indlan Accounting Standards (Ind AS) was made applicable to the Company from financial year (FY) 2016-17. Under ind AS the company being an operator
under Service Concession Agreement (SCA) has classified Carriageways as financial assets. The company in terms of the same is charging/reducing
proportionate amount of Annuity received by it every year to the financial assets so that at the end of concession period the assets becomes NIL. The
company is not effectively charging any depreciation on carriageways as was done under IGAAP. Accordingly the proportionate amount of annuity charges
to carriageways is not shown as income / revenue in the profit and loss account and similarly depreciation is not claimed as expenses as was done under
IGAAP.

As per the provision of section 4 and 5 of the Income Tax Act, the above amount of Annuity which is not Included in the profit and loss account is
| chargeable to tax under normal provision of Income Tax Act. Similarly the company is eligible to claim expenses of Major maintenance and income tax
depreciation under the normal provision of Act.

The Company while Computing Book Profit in terms of Section 115 JB of Income Tax Act 1961 has offered the above amount of annuity for tax and
corresponding depreciation on carriageways {original cost of project road) and expenses towards major mair e has been claimed while computing
book profit under section 115JB of the Act.

In this regard, the company had placed reliance on the rationale of introducing the MAT provisions (by way of section 80VVA of the Act), that actual
Income of the company without allowing deduction under any of the listed provision has to be ble. The r gement Is of the opinion that adjustment
made towards SCA results in recognition of notional financlal income ignoring annuity income, actual depreciation and will lead to taxability of notional
income and expenses which will defeat the purpose of introduction of the provision of MAT. As such while computing the book profit under 115)8 of the
Act, the company has removed the notional adjustment as required for SCA model under IND-AS scenario and offered actual profit under MAT computed
in lines with the IGAAP which it hitherto was following prior to introduction of Ind-As in FY 2016-17 in its income tax returns.

The Company for the purposes of preparation of Ind-AS financial statements for the current year and previous year has provided for the current tax
considering profits arrived under Ind-AS financial statements considering Service Concession Agreement adjustments under prudence. The provisions
would be crystallized on the finalization of the income tax assessment proceedings and necessary entries would be passed.

34 The Company is engaged primarily in the business of Construction, Operation & Maintenance of Highways. As per the requirements of Ind AS 108, "
QOperating Segments”, the principal revenue generating activities of the Company Is from Operation & Maintenance of Highways which is regularly
reviewed by the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). Accordingly, the management is of the view the Company has a single reportable segment
and the requirements of reporting on aperating segments and related disclosures as envisaged in Indian Accounting Standard 108 is not applicable to the
present activities of the Company.

The Company's only segment being Operation & Maintenance of Highways comprises of one customer which has contributed 100% of the revenue during
the year.

35 Tha Company has initiated the process of Balance confirmations and Is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Management however does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements due to the same.

36 Operating Lease

The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements. Under these agreements refundable ir free deposits have been given.
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Lease rentals under cancellable lease 4.61 4.56
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37 Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plans :
The Company's Contribution to Provident and Pension Fund and Superannuation Fund charged to Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows

2 Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Contribution to provident fund and other funds 12.55 35.48
Contribution to Superannuation fund 8.13 27.51
Total 20.68 62.99

b) The disclosures required as per the revised Ind AS 19 are as under:
The foliowing tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at March 31,
2018 and March 31, 2018:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i. Change in defined benefit obligation
Defined benefit at the beginning 90.18 19.00
Current Service Cost 9.97 152
Past Service Cost - 13.00
Interest expenses 6,70 1.35
Acguisition Cost/{Credit) (55.77) 4376
Remeasurements - Actuarial loss / (gain) (13.45) 11,55
Benefits paid (4.07)
Defined benefit at the end 33.52 90.18
il. Change in foir value of plan assets:
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning 17.20 15.44
Expected return on plan assets 117 111
Acquisition Adjustment 0.12 .
Actuarial gains/ (losses) 378 033
Contributions by employer 0.35 0.32
Senefits paid (4.07)
Fair value of plan 18.55 17.20

assets at the end

Amount Recognized In the Balance Sheer

Present Value of Obligation as at year end 33.52 90.18
Fair Value of plan assets at year end (18.55) {17.20)
Net (asset) / liability recognised 14.97 7298
iv. A t recognized in the S of Profit and Loss under employee benefit exp
Current Service Cost 9.97 152
Past Service Cost 13.00
Service cost 9.97 14.52
Net interast on net defined benefit liability / (assat) 5.53 0.24
Total expense 15.50 14.76

v. Recog d in other comprehensive income for the year
Remeasurement of actuarial gains/{losses) arising from

- changes in experience adjustments (13.50) 1433
- changes in financial assumption - {2.77)
-changes in demographic assumptions . .
Actuarial (gains)/ losses (13.50) 1156
- return on plan assets excluding interest income {3.78) (0.33)
Recognised in other comprehensive income (Ioss/(galns')] (17.28) 11.23
vi. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 2,58 18.50
1-2 year 2.76 4.98
2-3 year 2.86 6.16
3.4 year 299 1441
4-5 year 3.3 7.78
5-10 year 2146 6532
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Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
vii. Quontitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below: A

Increase [ decrease on present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end
(i) one percentage point increase in discount rate (2.77) (5.82)
(i1} one percentage point decrease in discount rate 318 6.65
{ill) one percentage point increase in salary escalation rate 189 5.56
(Iv) one percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate (1.76) (5.08)
{v) one percentage point increase in employee turnover rate 1.02 0.96
(vi) one percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate (1.14) (1.10)

viil,

<

Sensitivity Analysis Method

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit
obligation by percentage, keeping all the other actuarial assumptions constant.

Risk Faced by Company:

The Gratulty scheme is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death,
disability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary and the perlod of service and paid as lump sum at exit. The Plan
design means the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the financial results are expected to be:

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit
obligation will tend to increase
Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that Include mortality, withdrawal, disability and
retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary
Increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It Is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a
short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Investment with Insurer managed funds - conventional products 100% 100%

The Company contributes all ascertained liabilities towards gratulty to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). As of March 31, 2019 and March
31, 2018, the plan assets have been invested in insurer managed funds.

The welghted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are set out
below:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.60% 7.60%
Salary escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Mortality Table

(modified) ULT

Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08) Mortality (2006-08)

(modified) ULT

The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take Into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand In the employment market.

The Company expects to contribute Rs.0.35 Lakhs to the gratuity fund during FY 2019-20.

Leave Encashment
Uabllity towards Leave Encashment based on Actuarial valuation amounts to Rs. 47.93 Lakhs as at March 31, 2018 [March 31, 2018: Rs. 126.75 Lakhs].

g
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38 List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

a) Names of the related parties and description of relationship

Relationship
Holding Company

Enterprises having control over the Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Other entities - Enterprise where Xey Management
Personnel and their relatives exercise significant
influence

Key Management Personnel

Chief Financial Officer

Name of the related parties
GMR Highways Limited (GHWL)

GMR Enterprises Private Limited [GEPL],
(farmerly known as GMR Holdings Private Limited)
GMR Infrastructure Limited [GIL]

GMR Energy Ltd (GEL)

GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL)
GMR Tamabaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (GTTEL)
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL)

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Ltd [ GHVEPL)
Raxa Security Services Limited (RSSL)

Dhruvi Securities Private Limited [ DSPL)

Kakinada SEZ Limited [KSL]

GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited [GSPHL]

Delhi International Airports Limited [DIAL]

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation ( GVF}

GMR Projects Private Limited, (GPPL)

Mrs. Ragini Kiran Grandhi, Whole time director (from May 1, 2016)

Mr. O Bangaru Raju, President

Mr. Bajarang Lal Gupta, Independent Director (from September 1, 2016)
Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma, Director (from April 11, 2014)

Mr. K.A.Somayajuly, Independent Director (from March 31, 2015)

Mr. Mohan Rao M, Director (from October 16, 2015)

Mr. Janagani Pothalaiah (Manager, upto January 28, 2019)

Mr. Paranthaman Adimoolam (Manager, w.e f. February 23, 2019)

Mr. Amit Kumar, CFO

Company Secretary Mr. Paramjeet Singh, Company Secretary
b) Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows * : Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Relationship March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A. Items relating to statement of profit and loss
a. Interest income on Inter Corporate Deposit/Unsecured Loan given
GHWL Holding Company 755.78 682.95
GEPL Enterprises having control over the Company 85.69 133.78
GIL Enterprises having control over the Company 519.17 208.00
DSPL Fellow Subsidiary 1,105.75 1,093.46
KSL Fellow Subsidiary 36.72 -
GSPHL Fellow Subsidiary 8.38 -
GTTE Fellow Subsidiary 52.83 -
GTAE Fellow Subsidiary 37.01 -
b. Interest Income on Security Deposit
GHWL Holding Company - 193
¢ Modification Loss on Loan given to related parties
GHWL Holding Company 130.28 64.60
GEPL Enterprises having control over the Company 15.69 3530
GiL Enterprises having control over the Company 31.93 -
DSPL Fellow Subsidiary 3147 224.77
KSL Fellow Subsidiary 111.21 -
d. Interest on Liability portion of Preference Shares
GiL Enterprises having control over the Company 199.64 180.37
e. Share of Corporate Common expense
GiL Enterprises having control over the Company 14.43 49.00
1. Manthly Maintenance of Highways
GHWL Holding Company 551.12 392.76

gk
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b) Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows * :

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Relationship March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A
g Periodic major maintenance of Highways expenses (Provision)
GHWL Holding Company - 2,038.48
Periodic major maintenance of Highways cost not recognised as expenses as per Ind AS 115
GHWL Holding Company 2,256.24 -
h.  Charges for Security & Toll management services
RSSL Fellow Subsidiary 89.41 69.06
i.  Unwinding Intarest an Periodic Major Maintenance
GHWL Holding Company 653.88 394.03
J.  Cerporate Social Responsibility Expenses
GVF Other Entities 34.38 -
k. Travelling and conveyance
DIAL Fellow Subsidiary 3.14 -
B. Items relating to balance sheet
a. Equity shares outstanding
GHWL Helding Company 13,593.00 13,593.00
GiL Enterprises having control over the Company 138.00 138.00
GEL Fellow Subsidiary 69.00 69.00
b. Equity component of preference shares
GHWL Helding Company 3,620.95 3,620.95
¢ Liability portion of preference shares
GHWL Helding Company 2,068.49 1,868.85
d. Investment in equity instruments
GTTEL [March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil, March 31, 2018; Rs. 1t Fellow Subsidiary -
GTAEL [March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil, March 31, 2018: Rs. 1 Fellow Subsidiary
e. Unsecured Loan / inter corporate deposits given
GiL Enterprises having control over the Company
Opening balance 3,732.00 -
Add: Loan given during the year 3,450.00 3,732.00
Less: Recovered during the year - -
Closing Balance 7.182.00 3,732.00
GHWL Holding Company
Opening balance 6,080.00 5,780.00
Add: Loan given during the year - 300.00
Less: Recovered during the year - -
Closing Balance 6,080.00 6,080.00
DSPL Fellow Subsidiary
Opening balance 9,500.00 6,800.00
Add: Loan given during the year - 2,700.00
Less: Recavered during the year {7,500.00) -
Clasing Balance 2,000.00 9,500.00
GPPL Other entities
Opening balance 100.00 100,00
Add: Loan given during the year - -
Less: Recovered during the year {100.00) -
Closing Balance - 100.00
GTTE Fellow Subsidiary
Opening balance - +
Add: Loan given during the year 1,005.00 -
Less: Recovered during the year (264.00) -
Closing Balance 741.00
GTAE Fellow Subsidiary
Opening balance - =
Add: Loan given during the year 682.00 -
Less: Recovered during the year (188.00) -
Closing Balance 494.00
A\ EXpra\
QC - _\"QN \\
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b) Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows * : Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Relationship March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
e. Unsecured Loan / inter corporate deposits given ‘
KSL Fellow Subsidiary
Opening balance - -
Add: Loan given during the year 7,500.00 -
Less: Recovered during the year - s
Closing Balance 7,500.00 -
GSPHL Fellow Subsidiary
Opening balance - -
Add: Loan given during the year 1,967.07 -
Less: Recovered during the year - -
Closing Balance 1,967.07 -
f.  Mobilisation Advance Given
GHWL Holding Company
Opening balance 1,182.56 1,180.33
Add: Loan given during the year 326.29 2.23
Less: Recovered during the year - 0.00
Closing Balance 1,508.85 1,182.56
g Interest Receivable on Loan given
GiL Enterprises having control over the Company 527.25 1%0.17
GHWL Halding Company 1,918.17 1,449.55
DSPL Fellow Subsidiary 354.84 2,769.26
GTTE Fellow Subsidiary 47.55 -
GTAE Fellow Subsidiary 3331 -
KSL Fellow Subsidiary 1,355.57 -
GSPHL Fellow Subsidiary 7.54 -
GPPL Other entities - 464.96
h. Trade and Other Payables
GIL Enterprises having control over the Company 18.96 7.15
GHWL Helding Company 762.16 54,27
DIAL Fellow Subsidlary 314 -
RSSL Fellow Subsidiary 7.30 13.67
DIAL Fellow Subsidiary - 0.64
I Security/Other Deposit Recoverable
GHWL Helding Company - 20.00
RSSL Fellow Subsidiary 16.67 16.67
). Provision for major maintenance
GHWL Holding Company
Opening balance 6,122.34 3,688.52
Add: Provision made during the year 2,910.12 2,432.51
Less: Provision utilised during the year (1.32) 131
Closing Balance 9,031.14 6,122.34
k. Receivable - other reimbursement
GHVEPL Fellow Subsidiary - 0.02
GTAEL Fellow Subsidiary 0.01 -
Mts. Ragini Kiran Grandhi KmMp 0.33 -

* Reimbursement of expenses are not considered in the above statement.

Notes:

(8

Related Party Transactlons given above are as Identified by the Management.

Commitments with related parties: As at year end March 31, 2019, there is no commitment outstanding with any of the related parties.
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transaction from related partles are made on terms equivalent to those that prevall in arm’s length transactions. Qutstanding balances at the year-
end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.
For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has owed amount to related parties however impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed
to related parties does not arise. This assessment Is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and
the market in which the related party operates.

For terms and condition related to Preference Share
Logo fee and trade mark charges payable to GEPL

-~
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c. Comg tion of key management personnel of the company Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
3. Short-term employee benefits . 9848 126.55
b. Post-emplayment benefits (provident fund and superannuation fund) 7.92 -
¢. Termination benefits - -
d. Any other payment/benefit given to KMPs 3.54 3.22
Total 109.94 129.77
d. Transaction with Key Management Personnel Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Remuneration Qutstanding
Short-term Post Other lang- Termination Sitting Fee Others loans/advances
employ ployment  term employee benefits receivables
benefits benefits benefits
Mr. Bajarang Lal Gupta « - - - 171 - -
. . . (1.70) E :
Mr. K.A.Somayajulu - - - - 183 - -
> 7 (1.52) . -
Mrs. Raginl Kiran Granc 63.99 415 - . - - -
(54.00) - - - - - -
Mr. O Bangaru Raju 13.83 1.75 - - - - -
(47.31) - = 5 - 2 =
Mr, Janagani Pothalaia 18.67 1.90 - - - - -
(25.24) - - . - - -
Mr. Paranthaman Adim 199 0.12 < . = = =
Previous year are in brackets
* including arrears for earlier years
Note:

Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee
Benefits’ In the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not
included above.

39 Salient aspects of Service Concession Arrangement
National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) has granted the exclusive right and authority during the concession period for designing, engineering,
financing, procurement, construction, completion, aperation and maintenance of the Project Highway. it shall include Improvement, Operation and
Maintenance of NH-7 in the state of Andhra Pradesh.
The Concession period is 20 year commencing from the commencement date .1.e, September 27, 2006
NHA! has further granted the exclusive right and authority during the concession period in accordance with terms and condition of the agreement to:

- to develop, design, engineer, finarice, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project Highway during the Concession Pericd.

- upon Completion of the Project Highway and during the Operation Perlod to manage, operate & maintain the Project Highway and regulate the use
thereof by third parties.

- to allow NHAI to levy, demand, collect and appropriate the Fees from vehicles and persons liable to payment of Fees for using the Project Highway or
any part thereaf,

- perform and fulfil all of the obligations under this agreement.

- bear and pay all expenses, costs and charges incurred in the fulfilment of all the obligations under this Agreement.

- not assign or create any lien or Encumbrance on the Concession hereby granted on the whole or any part of the Project Highway nor transfer, lease or
part possession therewith save and except as expressly permitted by this Agreement or the Substitution Agreement.

Annuity

Subject to the provisions of the Concession Agreement and in consideration of the Company accepting the Concession and undertaking to perform and
discharge its obligations in accordance with tha terms, conditions and covenants set farth in this agreement, NHAI agrees and undertake to pay to the
Concessionaire, on each Annuity Payment Date, the sum of Rs. 5418 Lakhs.

The Company should not levy, demand or callect from or in respect of any vehicle or Person, for the use of Project Facilities, any sum whatsoever in the
nature of a toll or fee.

The Company should not permit or allow any advertisement/hoarding or other commercial activity and should not be entitied to charge, callect or receive
any sums on account of any such activity, The Company agrees that unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the project revenue shall consist of
Annuity only.

Concession Fee
In consideration of the gramt of Concession under this Agree
terms of the concession agreement.

the Concession fee payable by the Company to the NHAI Is Rs. 1 per year during the
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Operation and Maintenance

The Company shall operate and maintain the Project Highway by itself or through Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Contractor and if reguired, modify.
repair or otherwise make Improvement to the Project Highway to comply with Specifications and Standards, and other reguirements set forth in this
Agreement, Good Industry Practice, Applicable laws and Applicable Permits and manufacturer's guidelines and instructions with respect to toll systems and

£

more specifically: ~

. permitting safe, smooth and uninterrupted flow of traffic during narmal operating conditions.

ii. to allow NHAI to levy, demand, collect and appropriate the Fees from vehicles and persons liable to payment of Fees for using the Project Highway o?
any part thereof as per Article VIl of the Concession Agreement

- minimizing disruption to traffic in the event of accidents or other incidents affacting the safety and use of the Project Highway by providing a rapid
and effective response and maintaining liaison procedures with emergency services.

iv. undertaking routine maintenance including prompt repairs of potholes, cracks, Concrete joints, drains, line marking, lighting and signage.
v. undertaking major maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures and hardware and other equipment.
- carrying out periodic preventive maintenance to Project Highway.

-

fi. preventing with the assistance of concerned law enforcement agencies unauthorised entry to and exit from the Project Highway.

viii. preventing with the assistance of the concerned law enforcement agencies encroachments on the Project Highway including site and preserve the

right of way of the Project Highway,

- maintaining a public relations unit to Interface with and attend to suggestions from users of the Project Highway, the media, Government Agencies,
and other external agencies.

x. adherence to the safety standards.

=

Monitoring and Supervision during Operation

The Company is required to undertake periodic inspection of the Project Highway ta determine the condition of the Project Highway including its
compliance or otherwise with the Maintenance Manual, the Maintenance Programme, Specifications and Standards and the maintenance required and

shall submit report of such inspection ("Maintenance Report") to NHAI and the Independent Consultant,

40 Figures of the previous year wherever necessary, have been regrouped and rearrenged to canform with those of the current year.
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